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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEBNWE DM

Business Review

The Group for the year (the “Year”) recorded negative revenue of
approximately HK$52.1 million as compared to the negative revenue of
approximately HK$472.4 million last year. It was mainly attributable to the
realized losses on the disposal of listed equity investments of approximately
HK$59.4 million in the financial investments and services segment. The net
loss for the Year was approximately HK$156.4 million as compared to the
net loss of approximately HK$1,214.7 million for the last year. Basic loss
per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent for the Year
was approximately HK$0.02 (2016: HK$0.18). The Group’s net loss for the
Year was mainly attributable to the realized losses on the disposal of listed
equity investments and available-for-sale equity investments of
approximately HK$107.6 million in the financial investments and services
segment and the net equity-settled share option arrangement expenses of
approximately HK$60.6 million in corporate and others segment. The
unrealized fair value gain on available-for-sales equity investments of
approximately HK$444.7 million was taken to revaluation reserve account
and resulted in an increase in the Group's other comprehensive income
and total net assets.

Electronic and Accessory Products

The electronic and accessory products business continued to slow down
amid the sluggish export trade performance and the intense competition in
the consumer electronic market. Given the continuously and increasingly
difficult operating environment of electronic and accessory products
business, the Group has been closely monitoring the progress of the
business operation and placed much efforts in broadening the existing
products range. During the Year, the sales revenue was approximately
HK$2.5 million, compared to that of approximately HK$0.7 million for the
last year. The operating profit for this segment for this Year, was
approximately HK$3.0 million (2016: HK$7.1 million).
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Investments and Services

The financial investments and services of the Group comprises securities
investment and trading, debt and equity investments and money lending
business. The performance of Hong Kong stock market was dragged by
the economic slowdown of Mainland China and rising global financial and
political uncertainties. During the Year, the Hang Seng Index was volatile
with fluctuations between 19,595 points to 24,657 points. Amid the
expectation of further US interest hike, the political uncertainties following
Brexit referendum and the U.S president election results, investors’
confidence remained cautious. During the Year, the financial investments
and services segment recorded a realized loss on disposal of listed equity
investments of approximately HK$59.4 million and realized loss on disposal
of available-for-sales equity investments of approximately HK$48.2 million,
unrealized fair value gain on available-for-sale equity investments of
approximately HK$444.7 million, an unrealized fair value gain on listed
equity investments of approximately HK$20.3 million and the interest
income of approximately HK$4.7 million was generated from money
lending business.

Prospects

Since the property market may enter into consolidation phase with
downward price pressure, the Group has been monitoring the property
market in Hong Kong and Mainland China to seize investment
opportunities. The recent completion of an acquisition of a prime
residential property located at No. 2 Lincoln Road, Kowloon Tong, Hong
Kong is a testament of the Group’s continued effort in seeking appropriate
investment opportunities to increase the return to the shareholders.
Detailed information were set out in the Company’s announcement and
circular dated 28 November 2016 and 31 March 2017 respectively.

With a view of capitalizing on the business opportunities created by the
Shanghai-HK Stock Connect and Shenzhen-HK Stock Connect and
imminent launch of the HK-China Bond Connect later this year, the Group
has recently acquired 34% equity interest in a target company carrying on
business in type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), type 4 (advising on securities) and type 5 (advising on futures
contracts) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"). This acquisition is a vital
step in which the Group intends to diversify into securities brokerage
industries.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
FERENEEBEREB MR DN

Looking ahead, apart from reinforcing its existing businesses, the Group
will continue to place its efforts searching for suitable investment
opportunities which strategically fit into its diversification moves and
generate a steady source of income. However, the uncertain US monetary
policies and the rising expectation of US interest hike, devaluation of RMB
and the slowdown of Mainland China economy remain key factors
dragging on the global economic recovery. As broad macroeconomic
challenge persists, the Group will continue to be on the alert and to pursue
a prudent investment strategy in developing its existing and new
businesses.

Financial Review

The Group for the Year recorded negative revenue of approximately
HK$52.1 million as compared to the negative revenue of approximately
HK$472.4 million last year. The Group's revenue principally comprised the
sales of electronic and accessory products of approximately HK$2.5 million
and the realized losses on disposal of listed equity investments of
approximately HK$59.4 million in financial investments and services.
During the Year, the sales revenue from the electronic and accessory
products segment was approximately HK$2.5 million, compared to that of
approximately HK$0.7 million for the last year.

The Group's net loss for the Year was mainly attributable to the realized
losses on the disposal of listed equity investments and available-for-sale
equity investments of approximately HK$107.6 million in the financial
investments and services segment and the equity-settled share option
arrangement expenses of approximately HK$60.6 million in corporate and
others segment. The Group recorded total comprehensive income of
approximately HK$288.9 million for the Year compared to the total
comprehensive loss of approximately HK$1,217.3 million for the last year.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's net asset value was approximately
HK$1,315.6 million compared to the net asset value of approximately
HK$934.5 million last year. The consolidated net asset value per share of the
Group as at 31 March 2017 was approximately HK$0.147 (31 March 2016:
HK$0.110). The Group's total assets and total liabilities were approximately
HK$1,424.5 million (2016: HK$1,025.5 million) and approximately HK$108.9
million (2016: HK$91.1 million).
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operation with internally
generated cash flow, proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries and other fund
raising activities. The Group's cash and bank balance as at 31 March 2017
were approximately HK$4.0 million (31 March 2016: HK$86.5 million).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no bank overdrafts, short and long
term interest-bearing bank borrowings (31 March 2016: Nil).

As at 31 March 2017 the Group’s current ratio was approximately 12.2
times (31 March 2016: 4.0 times) based on current assets of approximately
HK$271.5 million (31 March 2016: HK$362.8 million) and current liabilities
of approximately HK$22.3 million (31 March 2016: HK$91.1 million).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has capital commitment were
approximately HK$0.9 million (31 March 2016: HK$4.4 million). The Group
also had no other contingent liabilities or material commitments.

Capital Structure
As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio, total borrowings to net
asset value, was approximately 6.58% (31 March 2016: 5.35%).

The Group's bank deposits and borrowings are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. Most of the Group's sales and purchases are made in
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, the exchange risks
that the Group is exposed to are minimal.

On 22 December 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Central Wealth Securities Investment Limited as the placing agent,
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to issue and the placing agent
has agreed to act as placing agent, on a best effort basis, to procure
placees to subscribe for various 4% coupon unlisted and unsecured notes
with maturity ranging from two to seven years to be issued by the
Company and to be placed pursuant to the placing agreement with an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$170.0 million during the placing
period. Completion for the placing of seven-year 4% coupon notes took
place on 10 January 2017 for gross proceeds and net proceeds of HK$92.1
million and approximately HK$86.6 million respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
FERENEEBEREB MR DN

Significant Investments

As at 31 March 2017, the Group maintained a portfolio of equity
investments (including available-for-sale equity investments and equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss) with total carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,170.9 million (31 March 2016: HK$828.3 million).
The details of the portfolio of equity investments as at 31 March 2017 and

BEARE

RZE—tF=A=+—H A5EERFERAELENA
1,170,900,000/% w( = & — X F = A = + — B:
828,300,000 L) 2 AR EEE (BIEA L ERAEE
RERBBREATEIRZRARE) REAKEAERZ

2 LF=A=+-AR=ZF—

NEZA=+—BZ#HES

31 March 2016 are respectively set out as follows: RIEHMOT -
2017 —=—+tF
% of
shareholding Unrealized
in the listed gain/(loss)  Fair value of the
securities held by for the year investment in
the Group as at ended listed securities
31 March 31 March as at 31 March
2017 2017 2017
R=Z—tF BE-Z—tF
=RA=+-—H =A=+—H R=Z—+t#F
AEBEF LtFEEZ =A=+—H
thRSZ REH twRS
REBFZE Wz (E18) REZAVE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FER
Stock Code  Name of Securities
R BEER
Available-for-sale equity investments
AHHEREARE
572 Future World Financial Holdings Limited (formerly 4.84% 87,263 185,170
known as Central Wealth Financial Group Limited)
REER S RIERAR DA
(AT ESREEBRAR)
1004 China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited 0.93% 6,966 67,923
PESZEREEZERER AR
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (formerly known as 14.43% 350,515 857,979
Skyway Securities Group Limited)
RIFERZERBBR AT (FIEXRIEESEEEGRAR)
1370 Hengshi Mining Investments Limited 0.31% (3,947) 10,300
BEBEXREARAA]
Total 440,797 1,121,372
A&t
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
FERENREERE MK DN

% of
shareholding Unrealized
in the listed gain/(loss)  Fair value of the
securities held by for the year investment in
the Group as at ended listed securities
31 March 31 March as at 31 March
2017 2017 2017
R-Z—tF BE-Z2—+tF
=H=+—H =A=+—H R=ZB—+F
REBAEF LFEZ =A=+—H
tRRFE KRB tiES
REBDL Wz (EE) REZATHE
HK$'000 HK$000
FHER THET
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
BRBERRATEIRZBRARE
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 0.83% 20,250 49,500
(formerly known as Skyway Securities
Group Limited)
RIFEERZERBR AT
(IR AFEEERAF])
Total 20,250 49,500
a5t
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
FERENEEBEREB MR DN

2016 —E-XEF
% of
shareholding Unrealized  Fair value of the
in the listed gain/(loss) investment in
securities held by for the year listed securities
the Group as at ended as at
31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016
RIE—RE BE-Z—XF
=A=+—H =H=+—H R-ZB-—AF
REBATRE LFEEZ =A=t-—8H
tHESEZ REH twRS
REBFDE Wz (E18) REZDVE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHERT FHER
Stock Code  Name of Securities
BRI BEEE
Available-for-sale equity investments
AHHEREARE
572 Future World Financial Holdings Limited (formerly 0.26% (936) 4,350
known as Central Wealth Financial Group Limited)
RARERSRIERAR DA
(AP EeRERERAR)
1004 China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited 4.26% (313,447) 233,156
PR S REEERARAT
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (formerly known as 16.91% (355,232) 417,615
Skyway Securities Group Limited)
RIRERZEAR AR (RIBRIEESEEFRAR])
Total (669,615) 655,121
&5t
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
FERENREERE MK DN

% of
shareholding Unrealized Fair value of the
in the listed gain/(loss) investment in
securities held by for the year listed securities
the Group as at ended as at
31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016
R-ZB—-RF BE-Z—XF
=A=+—H =A=+—H R-E—RF
REE LFEEZ =A=+-—H
EtwRE2 REH tHRS
REBDL Wz (ER) REZATHE
HK$'000 HK$000
FHERT THER
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
ERRBEAFEIRZRARE
412 China Innovative Finance Group Limited 0.49% 34,764 90,128
FEFTeREEER AR
1004 China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited 0.18% (7,420) 9,800
FEIEZREEERERAT
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (formerly known 1.18% 11,550 29,250
as Skyway Securities Group Limited)
RIREARERER DA (FIERIEZSEEERAF)
1153 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (formerly known 3.62% 43,655 43,999
as Skyway Securities Group Limited) W1702
RIRERZERAR AT
(AIBXRIEEZEAEEEGRLA) —+ZZ
Total 82,549 173,177
a5t
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
FERENEEBEREB MR DN

Details of Charges on Assets
As at 31 March 2017, the Company had no charges on assets (31 March
2016: Nil).

Material Acquisitions
During the Year, the Company had no material acquisition.

Material Disposals

On 30 March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to dispose of its entire interest in PLD Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company to a connected person of the Company
for a cash consideration of US$11.3 million (approximately HK$87.7
million). This disposal was completed on 13 May 2016.

On 16 June 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to dispose of its entire interest in CSPT Holdings Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to a connected person of the
Company for a cash consideration of US$10.5 million (approximately
HK$81.9 million). This disposal was completed on 24 August 2016.

Events After the Reporting Period

(@) Acquisition of 34% Equity Interest in Instant Achieve
Limited
On 3 April 2017, the Company entered into an agreement with
Future World Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 572) for the
transfer of shares equivalent to 34% equity interest of Instant
Achieve Limited for a total consideration of HK$7 million. Instant
Achieve Limited directly holds the entire issued share capital of
Central Wealth Securities Investment Limited, a licensed corporation
carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO; and the
entire issued share capital of Central Wealth Futures Limited, a
licensed corporation carrying on business in type 2 (dealing in
futures contracts) and type 5 (advising on futures contracts)
regulated activities under the SFO. The acquisition was completed on
7 April 2017.

BERMFS
R-F—tF=A=+—0 AAALEAERM( T
—XE=A=F—0: 8-

ERWE
RAERE - AD AR E AU

BEAHE

RZZ—A"F=ZA=18  AEEFVEEHZE  UAAA
AIEE AT HEHERAA RIEE 2 A E AT PLD Holdings
Limited z 2 30 # % - 3 & X (& /11,300,000 T 4
87,700,000 L) c ZHEERZT—"FRA+=HFMK °

RZZ—ARFNATRB  AEEFLEEGE  UAARA
AIfE A T EE AR R 2 & W& 2 5] CSPT Holdings
Limited 2 2 &0 # z= + 3] € X {8 /10,500,000 s ( 4
81,900,000/ L) - A EERZZE—"FNAZ+MHAR
X o

WERRSEE
(a) WWIBEDEHIRAF 34% Mk

R-ZZE—tFWHA=H  RRFERRMT RS EIER
BRAE (BRMHASE - 572) REZEEERNERRA
A134% e i 2 R 19 BTS2 ek 48X /E /7,000,000 7
T MEBRAREESATESHFREARARR
HEBITRAE - FEFHFREERARAIREES R
HERAITETE1H(BHERS) REAE(GEHIRHE
BER)ZHRETEY: REEREREHFEERAASE
HEETRA - FEHEERARAIREZLREE
EHIETE 2B (HEANRS) RESHE(BHEEN
REER)ZAETED BHABEER 22 —tFN
AtHZEK °
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Placing of New Shares and Convertible Bonds

On 6 April 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent, pursuant to which the placing agent has
conditionally agreed to procure a total of not less than six placees to
subscribe for a maximum of 1,793,025,796 shares at the placing
price of HK$0.155 per share. On the same date, the Company
entered into a placing agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to
which the placing agent has conditionally agreed to procure a total
of not less than six placees to subscribe for the convertible bonds of
an aggregate principal amount of HK$342,463,000. Based on the
initial conversion price of HK$0.191 per share, a maximum number
of 1,793,000,000 conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon
the exercise of conversion rights in full.

On 8 May 2017, the Company announced that completion of the
placing took place and an aggregate of 1,300,040,000 placing
shares were allotted and issued to not less than six placees at the
placing price of HK$0.155 per placing share in accordance with the
terms of the placing agreement. The aggregate net proceeds to the
Company from the placing (after deducting placing commission and
related expenses of approximately HK$3.2 million) were
approximately HK$198.3 million.

Acquisition of the Property Located at No. 2 Lincoln
Road

On 28 November 2016, the Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, conditionally agreed to acquire from a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (formerly
named Skyway Securities Group Limited) (Stock Code: 1141), the
sale shares and sale loan of a target company for a consideration of
HK$227.0 million. The sole asset of the target company is its
beneficial interest in the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary
which in turn holds a property located at No. 2, Lincoln Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The acquisition was completed on 9 May
2017. Details of the acquisition were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 28 November 2016, 28 February 2017 and 8
March 2017, the circular of the Company dated 31 March 2017 and
the announcement of the Company dated 9 May 2017.

(b)

(o)
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
FERENEEEWE DN

Employment, Training and Development IR IR

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of 12 employees. The Group HR=-ZT—+&F=A=+—H AEELE1N2HES - K&
is committed to staff training and development and structured training B HIRETEIILEE W ALRESHEREIEE -
programmes for all employees.

Remuneration packages are maintained at a competitive level and reviewed — A& &R A5 H 2 G2 FE BETRS « KEER
on a periodic basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded to certain  #E{ERIE Tz TIERBE NENIEHGETE TIEEIEAMERK

employees according to individual performance and industry practice. o

On behalf of the Board REEFS

China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEEREIREEEEGRAT
Chen Xiaodong EEEFE

Chairman of the Board PR EE R

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017 &5 ZET—+FRA=+=H
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of the trading and
distribution of electronic and accessory products and other merchandise,
financial investments and trading, and money lending business.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the financial year ended 31 March 2017, an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, an analysis of the
Group's performance using financial key performance indicators and
discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and performances and
the relationships with its key stakeholders, are included in the “Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the financial
position of the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 58 to 144.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of
the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

Results ¥E
Year ended 31 March
BZ=B=+—HILEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF —E-RF —E—RF —ZE—OF —E—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET FHET FHET FHET
Revenue A (52,128) (472,438) 6,548 36,119 15,030
Loss before tax BrELRIES 1B (156,397)  (1,214,744)  (1,274,973) (7,906) (17,723)
Tax Fi|E - (1) (166) - (79)
Profit/(Loss) for the year AT IR AR E %5,
attributable to (E18)
Owners of the parent HRBEA A (156,397)  (1,252,637)  (1,266,154) 5,404 (6,199)
Non-controlling interests  FE{ZAR i aE - 37,892 (8,985) (13,310) (11,603)
(156,397)  (1,214,745)  (1,275,139) (7,906) (17,802)
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF —ZT—RF —ET-—HFE —ZTMmONFE —ZT—=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FH&T FH&T FH&T FHET
Total assets BAERE 1,424,451 1,025,544 1,315,513 295,713 146,519
Total liabilities BERE 108,872 91,088 196,786 167,024 149,850
Net assets/(liabilities) FEE/ () 1,315,579 934,456 1,118,727 128,689 (3,331)
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Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in note
26 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2017, the Company had no reserves available for cash
distribution and distribution in specie. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account and capital reserve, with an aggregate balance of
HK$4,071,377,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales of electronic products to the Group'’s single
customer accounted for 100% of the sales from the electronic products
segment for the year. Purchases of electronic products from the Group's
single supplier accounted for 100% of the total purchases from the
electronic products segment for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the above customer or supplier.

Report of the Directors
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N
ARARAEE 2 FH BRI REMEE26 -

BrRBEHE
ARAZMARERE— AN\ FADEEEEBELEE
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A F 72 Ik
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MR 2 H o WON ARRZRDBEERRE R FEGLE
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FEERFREER
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (appointed on 2 December 2016)
Mr. Yu Qingrui (appointed on 22 June 2016)

Ms. Lam Hay Yin (appointed on 20 July 2016)

Mr. Li Yunfeng (resigned on 19 April 2016)

Mr. Wang Haixiong (resigned on 20 July 2016)

Mr. Wei Zhenyu (resigned on 2 December 2016)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Mai Qijian (appointed on 22 June 2016)
Mr. Frank H. Miu (resigned on 1 July 2016)
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (resigned on 1 July 2016)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Yu Qingrui and
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong shall retire at the 2017 annual general meeting (the
“2017 AGM") and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the said meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company and the
Company still considers them to be independent as at the date of this
report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 48 to 50 of the annual
report.

EZ
ENREEARE RS ARTZEEOT

HITEE

REREE (R _FE—NFH+_HA_HARZHE)
REHRAE (R -F—NFAA -1+ -—HEZF)
ML (R=F—NFLA-THEZE)
FREEEE (R-F—NFOAA+NAEE)
FEEEE (R NFL A=+ HEE)
BIRFEE(R-FE—NF+-H-HEF)

BUFPHITESE -

BEXREE

RRERE

EHEAL (R -E—ANEANH -+ — AEZE(E)
WAL 4 (R = B — AT A — BRHE)

RBARBZHEAMGE  RERAERBERLEEEAR-F
—tFRRBAFAEG ([ ZZ2—tFRFEFKRE]) LRE -
WEDFEERLMEN ARG LERET -

ARFCRBEBLAES EHRAT EmRAD E31345
BEEARNRSBIFNTESCFEBYEERE - BAR
ARAHE AR RERBILAL -

ESRGNEEAEREHR

ARREERAEESREBAB ZEHHNAFRE
BHZEZES50H -
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Directors’ Service Contracts
Each of Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay Yin has a
service contract with the Company without any fixed term.

Each of Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Chen Youchun and Mr. Mai Qijian has
been appointed for a fixed term of one year.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of
directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”, no
director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Report of the Directors
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Connected Transactions

Disposal of PLD Holdings Limited

On 30 March 2016, Hoshing Limited (“Hoshing”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and China Culture Silicon Valley Limited
("China Culture”) entered into an agreement pursuant to which Hoshing
has agreed to sell and assign, and China Culture agreed to purchase the
entire issued share capital of PLD Holdings Limited (“PLD Holdings”) and
accept the assignment of the entire amount of the unsecured and non-
interest bearing shareholder’s loan owing from PLD Holdings and Pacific
Light Data Communication Co Ltd to the Company being HK$78,045,998
at the transaction consideration of US$11.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$88.14 million), which would be satisfied by way of cash
upon completion (the “PLD Disposal”).

As China Culture is a wholly-owned company of Mr. Wei Junkang, the
father of Mr. Wei Zhenyu, a former executive Director of the Company,
and China Culture is an associate of Mr. Wei Zhenyu and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The Disposal
therefore constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 March 2016. Completion of the
PLD Disposal took place on 13 May 2016.

Disposal of CSPT Holdings Limited

On 16 June 2016, Hoshing and DIING International Limited (“D9ING")
entered into an agreement pursuant to which Hoshing has agreed to sell
and assign, and DIING agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital
of CSPT Holdings Limited (“CSPT Holdings”) and accept the assignment of
the entire amount of the unsecured and non-interest bearing shareholder’s
loan owing from CSPT Holdings and its subsidiaries to the Company being
approximately HK$77,759,000 at the transaction consideration of US$10.5
million (equivalent to approximately HK$81.9 million), which would be
satisfied by way of cash upon completion (the “CSPT Disposal”).

As DIING is a wholly-owned company of Ms. He Xin, the step-mother of
Mr. Wei Zhenyu, a former executive Director of the Company, and DIING
is an associate of Mr. Wei Zhenyu and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The CSPT Disposal therefore constitutes
a connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 16 June 2016. Completion of the CSPT Disposal took
place on 24 August 2016.

FERXS

& PLD Holdings Limited
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Loan Transactions

On 12 July 2016, Top Billion Finance Limited (“Top Billion”) as the lender,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan
agreement with Magnum Pacific Limited (“Magnum Pacific”) as the
borrower, pursuant to which Top Billion agreed to provide a loan facility in
the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 to Magnum Pacific for a term of
twelve months commencing from the day of drawing appearing on the
first notice of drawing given by Magnum Pacific. Magnum Pacific, being a
substantial shareholder of the Company, was a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore the grant of loan facility
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 12 July 2016.

On 24 August 2016, Top Billion as the lender entered into a loan
agreement with Mr. Chen Xiaodong (“Mr. Chen”) as the borrower,
pursuant to which Top Billion agreed to provide a loan facility in the
principal amount of HK$31,900,000 to Mr. Chen for a term of nine
months commencing from the day of drawing appearing on the first notice
of drawing given by Mr. Chen. Mr. Chen had given a notice of drawing on
24 August 2016 for the said amount. Mr. Chen, upon appointment as the
Chairman and an executive director of the Company, became a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore the grant of
loan facility constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 2 December 2016.

Acquisition of the Property located at No. 2 Lincoln Road

On 28 November 2016, Celestial Lodge Limited (“Celestial Lodge”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Gold Mission
Limited (“Gold Mission”) entered into an agreement pursuant to which
Celestial Lodge has agreed to acquire from Gold Mission the entire issued
share capital of Sky Eagle Global Limited (“Sky Eagle”) and all obligations,
liabilities and debts owing or incurred by Sky Eagle to Gold Mission and its
associates at the transaction consideration of HK$227,000,000. The sole
asset of Sky Eagle is its beneficial interest in the entire issued share capital
of a subsidiary which in turn holds a property located at No. 2, Lincoln
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. On 7 March 2017, Celestial Lodge and Gold
Mission entered into a supplemental agreement pursuant to which
Celestial Lodge and Gold Mission has agreed to change the settlement
method to payment in cash upon completion (the Acquisition”).
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As Gold Mission is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CMBC Capital Holdings
Limited (“CMBC Capital”) (formerly known as “Skyway Securities Group
Limited”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, Gold Mission is an
associate of CMBC Capital and hence a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The Acquisition therefore constitutes a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28
November 2016, 28 February 2017 and 8 March 2017 and the circular of
the Company dated 31 March 2017. Completion of the Acquisition took
place on 9 May 2017.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed under
the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this directors’ report
and note 29 to the financial statements, no equity-linked agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Share Option Schemes

The Company currently operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants (including but not
limited to the directors and employees of the Group) who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Details of the Company’s share
option schemes are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

After the expiry of the old share option scheme on 27 August 2013, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme on 27 September 2013 in
order to provide incentives and rewards to the eligible participants.

At the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company, the scheme
mandate limit was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders such
that the total number of shares which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the share option scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) as may from time to time be adopted by the
Company must not exceed 896,512,898 shares. As at the date of this
report, the total number of shares available for issue under the share
option scheme of the Company was 512,898 shares, representing
approximately 0.005% of the issued share capital of the Company. The
Company may refresh the scheme mandate limit with its shareholders’
approval provided that each such refreshment may not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.
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A summary of the movements of the share options granted during the

Report of the Directors
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KRE-T—FZA=+—BLEER  BHZBRES

year ended 31 March 2017 is set out as follows: BiuiaoT -
Number of Number of Number of Exercise price
share options share options share options of share
outstandingat  granted during outstanding at Date of grant of Exercise period of options
Name or category of participant 1 April 2016 the Year® 31 March 2017 share options share options™  (HKS per share)
R=B-~E R=B-t&
mE-H REAEE ZA=1-8
HRITEZ Bz HRITEZ BRETEE
SEELRAER BRERE BREZE® BREHA RYBRERN BRETEHRO (B8R /%)
Director
gz
Chen Xiaodong - 89,600,000 89,600,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
RER Sl ok S iy = ZE—+#-AZTRE
ZZ-NEZRTNA
Yu Qingrui - 89,600,000 89,600,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
REH —Z-+tFZfA=+H —T—+F-fA=-FAZ
ZZ-NEZRTNA
Other employee
HitES
In aggregate - 3,000,000 3,000,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
Ch —T—+F-fA-1AH “ET—+tF-f-+EE
ZZ-NEZRTNH
Management personnel of service
providers
RHMEE2EEBAS
In aggregate - 713,800,000 713,800,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
Ch —T—+F-fA-1AH “ET—+tF-f-+EE
ZZ-NEZRTNH
Total - 896,000,000 896,000,000
st
Notes: FHsE -
(1) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the (1)  BREZBBHSELBMEESTEMRMANRSBIL -

commencement of the exercise period.

(2) The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of offer of

share options on 20 February 2017 was HK$0.154.

(3) No share options have been exercised/lapsed/cancelled during the year ended 31

March 2017.

@)

®3)

ARABBRMREEBEERHAN —T—F_A=-FTAZ
W E/R0.154 87T

BE-Z—HF-AZT-BULFE  BEBREETE X
B o
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2017, the interests of the directors of the Company in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

EEREAQFARGREBERGD 2R

RIB—F=R=+—H  ARRNEFRAR AN RIE
B B R EH R E GO E 5 LB G DEXVED)
THERATTAARRRERES RIS HPIF 352 KA T A
EFcERM LD IRBELTETAZEZETESFRS
PRSP RI([HRET ) BME AR T LBz mm
T

(1) REQFEBRZGR

Number of
ordinary shares

Percentage* of
the Company'’s

Name of director Capacity interested issued share capital
BEEESN EAERAT

EENA 237 LERBE CEROTREFEIL*

Lam Hay Yin Beneficial owner 13,176 0.01%

N2 BmEBA

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested divided * OB E SN L RBRYEERUAATN -

by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March 2017.

(2) Long position in underlying shares of the Company
— physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

—tF=ZA=T—REBHTRMHEA -

(2 RAXFHEBROZHFR —BWEEFL

MRASTET AR
Percentage* of
the underlying
Number of shares over

underlying shares
in respect of the

the Company’s
issued share

Name of director Capacity share options granted capital
FIRHBREMS R HEBRO LA R

EEnR 13 HEROEE ERITREBDLL*

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 89,600,000 1%

BRAER BEHEEA

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 89,600,000 1%

REH BEREAA

Details of the share options granted by the Company are set out
under the section “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

% The percentage represents the number of underlying shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March
2017.

BRI RRPEHEREZ BN ARG [EAE

) —5 o

* BOLERAEGNEEROBEARUAARTR-Z
—tF=A=+-HEHBTROHEE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he/she was deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option Schemes” above
and in the share option scheme disclosures in note 29 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any of the directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

BEXEEEIN  R-F—tF=ZA=+—0  ARFZ
BEEATETRABRERARRREAEMBEEE (EXE
REFRAEEPIZEXVE) 280 - HERHXESTHES
EAREES RAEROIEXVBETRESHIBAME AL
AN Pz EmSOR R (BRREEZ RN RI %%
RERRABERREIEDZLAR)  RABRALRBRE
F LB EPIE 352 kM FE 2 &L iR ER 2T Al
RERMGARBRBZ 2 S IRE -

ESREROSES ZEF

B L [EENARE D kAR B 2 e | & [IB e
FHEI AT LA BA R $R R MY E 20 eV BB AR S B R BR A R A
WEEN  RNEAMEREMESLREES B ZRBIRK
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Ao MRS IREITE E AR BERN © b NRBHEA
B AR MAT SR LHE - B E RN A EMEAR
RREAZEER -
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2017, the following parties had interests of 5% or more in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as
the Company is aware:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

ITERRRAQARGREBRD 28
=
RoB—tF=A=+—B - REES R GRS 336
REFE2BRMAR  AEARANE - THEHRAR
7 2 BB S AR BBRR A5 o B 5% S b b2 RS ¢

RARBREBRZHER

all

Percentage* of

Number of the Company’s
Name of substantial ordinary shares issued share
shareholder Capacity interested capital
BEREREZ EARARE#T
FTERRER 14 ZEREAE BREBDL*
Wei Zhenyu Beneficial owner 2,150,000,000 23.98%
BT BEmfEE A
Chen Xiangru Beneficial owner 1,853,992,000 20.68%
BR MR 40 BEmMEA
CMBC Capital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1,215,971,647 13.56%
(formerly known as “Skyway BEm#EAA
Securities Group Limited"”)
RIFRERZERBR AT
(A [ RIRZE S SEEAR QA ])
Huang Chuan Beneficial owner 8,610,000 0.10%
&) BEmfEEA
Other (Note) 2,000,000,000 22.31%
Hft (B 3E)
2,008,610,000 22.41%

Note: These shares were held by Dragon Regal Holding Limited, a controlled corporation
of Huang Chuan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company” above, had an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MisE : 55 B {p B &Il 2 4% %A 7] Dragon Regal Holding Limited
A o

B LA EEESN RCFE—tF=A=+—H  BARF
ZER(EREGZHN EX[EERARABRMD RBERD
] —8) 5 MEEMERALTRARBREZES LB
B 1R015 336 1RA T T 2 B T MPTRC 8 AR R B A AR
Bt s AR EOA R o
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is considered
to have interests in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in
the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors are aware, during the year ended 31 March 2017
and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on its business and operations.

Events after the reporting period
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are
set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.

Auditors
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the 2017 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Xiaodong
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 June 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERME

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
formulating and implementing corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company’s needs.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code"”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for the deviations from
the code provisions A.2.1 and E.1.2 of the CG Code. Key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company as well as the details
of the foregoing deviations are summarized below.

The Board

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the Board. The
Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the development of
Company business, and provides leadership in the creation of value for
shareholders. All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively and acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control systems,
material transactions (particularly those involving conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management of
the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations are followed. Any director may request
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expenses, upon reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior management of
the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to
these officers for implementing Board decisions. The Board reviews the
delegated functions and work tasks regularly. The aforesaid officers have
to obtain Board approval prior to entering any significant transactions.

TEERER
EFERPAGNLEERYAANBRREZ BB - i
ARABARDERHTEAARTREZ LETARM -

NEEEFEEN  ARAT—HET EWRRMSEHARE
yastRI([RZEE ATRI AT RIGS  REEEEER
R

=4

A2 FREXEA2 NV GEREE12{E - KRR ZEBLE
AR AR AR A K B B Bt w2 FHB S TR SR

<

g omp 5

E=g
ExeE1 -  2BRERM

EFZgEARAEBNBER M RIZR - RAQREBH
BRGERE - R METE > S| RERARRAIEEEZE
T MAESEREREZREREBMBETRE @ BER(E
HEERE MARR B REBRMATE

EERAEARTMASEESR  BRILEREZEMEEE
FH ERBRBLEE  EREBRAMEZERLS AR
Z(BRHRFENEERZRS)  MBEHN ZEEERE
MEEMBREEEH -

2REENNFMSHMEGHEBEER  UERBREARMER
ARRBRERABNERLESERS  NERETES
SRFUEAEERENRRD - FREE—RAEBAE
FEREAEER EEENBRATSBEYEXER B
ABARRF -

ARARWAEERE (THREEETHARBTNRTEESR
SRERAREY - ERRUREIMTRABRDHIEINAS
HRE  ARSFEENTERGNAR - EFSEHBRAM
HBIRAME R THE - ERILEMBEARZAT - LS RITH
ABUERSEESHE -
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the date of
this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Mai Qijian

Executive Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Mai Qijian

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Mr. Chen Youchun

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships among the
members of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report. None
of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of three
independent non-executive directors (representing at least one-third of the
Board) with one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise.

Corporate Governance Report
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The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the
Group and for the exercise of independent judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. To achieve clear division of responsibilities between
the management of the Board and day-to-day management of the
business and hence to ensure balance of power and authority, there is
separation of duties for the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company.
However, after the resignation of Dr. Kwong Kai Sing, Benny as the Chief
Executive of the Company with effect on 20 April 2015, the Group has
been recruiting the appropriate substitution for the post of chief executive.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr.
Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay Yin have not been appointed for a specific
term but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s
bye-laws. The Company has also issued a letter of appointment to each of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company for a term of 1
year.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Yu Qingrui and
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong shall retire at the 2017 AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting. The Board
recommended the re-election of the above retiring directors at the 2017
AGM.

The Company has adopted “Directors Nomination Procedures” as written
guidelines in providing formal, considered and transparent procedures to
the Board for evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships. Where
vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations.

BEEeMERRR T EAAREEBTER BRRIELET
A 2 I REBRz BB FE -
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Training and Continuing Development of Directors
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction on his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Such induction is normally supplemented with visits to the
Group's key plant sites and/or meetings with the senior management of
the Company.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, business and market changes to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Continuing briefings and professional development
for directors are arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading
materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to
the Group are provided to directors from time to time for their studying
and reference. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company (i) has organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors on
corporate governance and updates on the Listing Rules amendments and
(i) has provided reading materials on regulatory updates to all the directors
for their reference and studying.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has been made of all the
Company'’s directors and they have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Own Code
throughout the period from 1 April 2016 to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
inside information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees has been noted by the
Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and relevant
employees in advance.

Corporate Governance Report
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Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the regular Board meetings,
Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out below:

BBz HFERE

ST FZ A ALERRAIESE

THEE EFEERRERARATRTAG HELEH
BT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE/ EENE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual Special
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
E4A ) R’E e e
Name of Director BEpg ETEeE ZE88Y Z88E8H ZEged AEAE BRIAE
Mr. Frank H. Miu (note 1) BaxE (W) N N - - - -
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (note 2) ok (FEE2) 11 11 - 0 - -
Mr. Wang Haixiong (note 3) TgHEE (M3) 7 - - - - -
Mr. Wei Zhenyu (note 4) EfRFEE(5E4) 33 - - - o1 01
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong Bl 44 0 1”1 1”1 " 171
Mr. Chen Youchun BEELE 4/4 2 17 17 17 17
Mr. Yu Qingrui (note 5) REHTA (D) 33 - - - 0 N
Mr. Mai Qijian (note 6) BHRRA (o) 33 101 - - 1 1
Ms. Lam Hay Yin (note 7) MR L (W32 7) 33 - 11 - 1 1
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (note 8) BER £ (HEs) " - - - - -
Mr. Li Yunfeng (note 9) R (59) - - - - - _
Notes: Bt sE
1. Mr. Frank H. Miu resigned as an independent non-executive director of the 1. BHEEENRZ—RNFELA—BEERRARELIENTES -
Company on 1 July 2016. During the period from 1 April 2016 up to his resignation RZT—R"FMA—-HZE? \%?E HEERARITIRESS
date, 1 regular Board meeting and 1 Audit Committee meeting were held. EHAGHERIREZEZEGEH -

32

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 July 2016. During the period from 1 April 2016 up to his resignation
date, 1 regular Board meeting, 1 Audit Committee meeting and 1 Nomination
Committee meeting were held.

Mr. Wang Haixiong resigned as an executive director of the Company on 20 July
2016. During the period from 1 April 2016 up to his resignation date, 1 regular
Board meeting was held.

Mr. Wei Zhenyu resigned as an executive director of the Company on 2 December
2016. During the period from 1 April 2016 up to his resignation date, 3 regular
Board meetings, 1 Annual General Meeting and 1 Special General Meeting were
held.

Mr. Yu Qingrui was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 22 June
2016. During the period from his appointment date up to 31 March 2017, 3
regular Board meetings, 1 Annual General Meeting and 1 Special General Meeting
were held.
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6. Mr. Mai Qijian was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 22 June 2016. During the period from his appointment date up to 31
March 2017, 3 regular Board meetings, 1 Audit Committee meeting, 1 Annual
General Meeting and 1 Special General Meeting were held.

7. Ms. Lam Hay Yin was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 20
July 2016. During the period from her appointment date up to 31 March 2017, 3
regular Board meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting, 1 Annual General
Meeting and 1 Special General Meeting were held.

8. Mr. Chen Xiaodong was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 2
December 2016. During the period from his appointment date up to 31 March
2017, 1 regular Board meeting was held.

9. Mr. Li Yunfeng resigned as an executive director of the Company on 19 April 2016.
During the period from 1 April 2016 up to his resignation date, no meeting was
held.

In addition, Mr. Wei Zhenyu, the former chairman of the Board, held a
meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the year under review.

Board Committees and Corporate Governance
Functions

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees have been established with defined written
terms of reference, which are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website (except for the written
terms of reference of the Executive Committee which is available to
shareholders upon request). All the Board committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the three executive directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay
Yin. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, also acts as the
Chairman of this Committee. The Executive Committee operates as a
general management committee under the direct authority of the Board to
increase the efficiency for the business decision. It monitors the execution
of the Company’s strategic plans and operations of all business units of the
Group and discusses and makes decisions on matters relating to the
management and day-to-day operations of the Group.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three members, namely, Mr. Kwok Chi
Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Chen Youchun and Mr. Mai Qijian, all of whom
are independent non-executive directors. Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong possesses
the appropriate accounting and financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the relationship with the
external auditors by reference to the work performed by the auditors, their
fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and
(iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee performed
the following works:

— Review and discussion of the financial statements, results
announcements and reports for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
for the six months ended 30 September 2016, the financial
reporting, the related accounting principles, practices and
compliance procedures;

—  Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of external
auditors; and

—  Review of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings
without the presence of executive directors to discuss with the Audit
Committee issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.
The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2017 have also
been reviewed by the Audit Committee. There is no disagreement between
the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of
external auditors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises both executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Kwok
Chi Kwong (Chairman), Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Mr. Chen Youchun.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of directors and members of
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision B.1.2(c)
(i) of the CG Code is adopted); (i) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives; and (iii)
establish a formal and transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Group as well as market practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee has
(i) generally reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and structure
and the current remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management of the Group; and (ii) recommended to the Board of the
remuneration package regarding the appointment of Mr. Chen Xiaodong,
Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Mr. Mai Qijian as directors of the
Company.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the senior management for the year ended 31 March 2017 falls within
the band from HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000.

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises both executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong (Chairman), Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong and Mr. Chen Youchun.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend any changes
to the Board; (i) identify qualified and suitable individuals to become Board
members and select and make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors of the Company,
having regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to certain criteria such as the Company'’s
needs, the diversity on the Board, the integrity, experience, skills,
professional knowledge of the candidate and the amount of time and
effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and
responsibilities. External recruitment professionals might be engaged to
carry out selection process when necessary.

To comply with the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, a Board diversity
policy was adopted by the Company in September 2013, pursuant to
which the Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring the
implementation of the Board diversity policy and assessing the Board
composition under diversified perspectives (including but not limited to
educational background or professional experience). The Nomination
Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation to the
Board, if any. Such policy and objectives will be reviewed from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness in determining the optimum composition
of the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee
performed the following works:

—  Considered and recommended the appointment of Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Mr. Mai Qijian as
directors of the Company;

—  Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
to the requirements for the business of the Group and reviewed the
Board diversity policy;

—  Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2016 annual general
meeting of the Company; and

—  Assessed the independence of independent non-executive directors
of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board has reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in respect of the Financial Statements
The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements. The
management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment
of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for
approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve the Company’s strategic
objectives, and for establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investments and the Group's assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems. The
Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be conducted each year
to confirm that the Company has properly complied with the risk
management and internal control policy. All divisions would conduct
internal control assessment to identify risks factors with potential impact
on the Group’s business. The management would assess the likelihood of
risk occurrence, monitor the progress of risk management and report to
the Board and the Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of
the systems.

The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general guide to
the Company’s directors, officers, senior management and relevant
employees in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company'’s internal audit staff has performed independent review of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. Key issues such as accounting practices and all material
controls were examined. The relevant findings and recommendations are
provided to the Board and the Audit Committee.

The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the management, has
reviewed the report from the management and the internal audit findings,
and reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, including the financial, operational and compliance controls for the
year ended 31 March 2017. The annual review also covered areas on
financial reporting, internal audit function, staff qualification, experiences
and relevant resources. The Board considered that such systems are
adequate and effective and ongoing review of the same nature would be
conducted in subsequent years.
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External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration
The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2017 is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. During the year ended 31 March
2017, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors,
Ernst & Young, is set out below:

Nature of Services

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRS

SIS A BB B2 A BB oz 5
EBARTNEEEBERERARRE-F—LF=A
=B S BRI BN R AT
(BIRBAREE] 6 BE-T—tF=A=+—A
I - AR RSN A B FISAE 4,/ R
2 HMBFIT -

Remuneration (HK$’000)

REME M (FHxT)
Audit services EETRTS 1,500
Non-audit services (Note) JEF T RS (BRE) 178
TOTAL: HET 1,678

Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included other assurance services, tax
compliance and advisory services.

Company Secretary

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong, Patrick, the
Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge. Biographical
details of Mr. Szeto are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.cspthl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public access.
Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company. Contact details are as follows:

Address: Unit 6706B-08A, Level 67, International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Department of Investor Relations)
Fax: (852) 2865 4654

Email: info@cspthl.com
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and, where applicable, will normally
attend the annual general meeting and other relevant shareholders’
meetings to answer questions raised.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman of a
listed issuer should attend the issuer’s annual general meeting. Due to
unavoidable business engagement, Mr. Wei Zhenyu, the former Chairman
of the Company, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 19 August 2016. Mr. Wei Zhenyu had arranged for
other directors and management, who are well-versed in the Company’s
business and affairs, to attend the meeting and communicate with
shareholders of the Company.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them posted of
the Company’s developments.

Shareholder Rights

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual directors. The Company’s shareholders
may convene a special general meeting or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company at the date of deposit of the requisition may request
the Board to convene a special general meeting pursuant to Clause
71 of the Company’s bye-laws by sending a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
written requisition.
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(2)  Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights at the date of the requisition or not less than 100
shareholders may put forward a proposal at a shareholders’ meeting,
pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda by sending a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company'’s head office in Hong Kong. The proposal should be stated
in the written requisition and such written requisition should be
submitted as early as practicable to enable the Company to make
necessary arrangement (in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and in case
of any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting).

(3) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, the shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a
written notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These
notices should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong, or the office of the Company’s branch share registrar. The
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting and end 7
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to
its bye-laws. An up-to-date version of the Company’s bye-laws is also
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.cspthl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each shareholder’s meeting.
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Report
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Scope and Reporting Period

This is the first ESG report by the Company, highlighting its Environmental,
Social, and Governance (the “ESG") performance, with disclosure
reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

The principal activities of the Company are trading and distribution of
electronic and accessory products and other merchandises, engagement in
financial investments, trading and money lending business. This ESG report
covers the Company’s overall performance in two subject areas, namely,
Environmental and Social of the business operations in office in Wanchai,
Hong Kong, from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017, unless otherwise stated.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Company to report
on for this ESG report, key stakeholders including investors, shareholders
and employees have been involved in regular engagement sessions
including routine meetings and annual general to discuss and to review
areas of attention which will help the business meets its potential growth
and be prepared for future challenges.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please give your
suggestions or share your views with us via email at info@cspthl.com.
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The Company’s Sustainability Vision

We are committed to conducting our business responsibly, ensuring our
business does not contribute to significant adverse impact to the
environment and society while bringing sustainable growth and profit.

A. Environmental

1. Emissions
Types of emission sources the Company involved in the reporting
period were mainly petrol, electricity, water and paper. The business
does not involve in consumption of packaging materials, production-
related air, water discharge, and land pollutions which are regulated
under laws and regulations of Hong Kong .

Although the Company’s business does not generate significant
adverse environmental impact as compared with businesses in other
sectors, the Company is committed to reducing greenhouse gas
emissions and preserving natural resources. With electricity
consumption as its main source of greenhouse gas emission, the
Company frequently reminds its staff to practise energy-saving
habits in office.

2. Use of Resources
(i) Petrol
The Company consumed petrol for the Company-owned
private passenger vehicles. It encourages the use of public
transportation whenever possible to reduce overall
consumption of petrol and respective emission.

(i) Electricity
The Company consumes electricity for maintaining daily office
operations including lighting, office equipment and other
miscellaneous items. To reduce electricity consumption, staff
frequently reminds each other to turn off office lights,
computers, printers and air conditioners when leaving office.

(i)  Water
The Company’s water consumption is managed by the
Management Office of its office building. Its business does not
involve significant water consumption.
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(iv)

Waste

The Company generates no hazardous waste in its operation.
Non-hazardous waste from the Company is regularly collected
by the Management Office and is mainly composed of office
paper. With the principles of “reduce, reuse and recycle”, the
Company centralized stationary supply to utilize stationaries
and avoid wastage. It returns used cartridges to suppliers and
purchases remanufactured toner cartridges for its multi-
functional devices. Reusable dishes and tableware instead of
disposable ones are used in office. Other wastes including
unneeded computers and furniture are donated to Caritas
Hong Kong whenever possible.

Office Paper

Paper is used for daily office operations such as documents
printing and deliverables packaging. It practices paper saving
initiatives, such as adopting double-sided printing and printing
with single-side used paper. Paper waste is also collected
separately by the Management Office for recycling.

Social
Employment and Labour Practices

(i)

China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIEE h R EEAER AT

Employment
The Company had a total number of 12 employees as of 31
March 2017, in which all of them are full time employees from
Hong Kong.

Competitive Compensation and Benefits

The Company abides by all applicable employment and labour
related laws of Hong Kong. Employees are provided with
attractive salary with year-end double pay. Salary is reviewed
on a periodic basis with considerations given to employees’
performance during the past year, market rate of the related
industry, profit result and the projected earning ability of the
Company. Individual salary adjustment in respect of
promotion, confirmation, transfer, re-classification etc. are
recommended by the Department Head in consultation with
the Administration Department. For certain job positions, the
Company pays commission and incentives in line with trade
practices and management policies. Various types of leave are
provided including annual, sick, maternity, paternity and jury
services leave. Apart from the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF)
scheme, employees are entitled to medical benefits scheme
and employees’ compensation insurance. The standard
working hours are 8.5 hours per day and 5 days per week.

(iv)
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(i)

Promotion, Transfer and Dismissal

The Company aims to provide channels of promotion and
advance employees to more responsible positions based on
their performance, qualification, integrity and ability.
Promotion will be offered with considerations of the
Company’'s operation, competence, potential and
interpersonal skills of the employee and recommendations
given by the employee’s Department Manager. The Company
reserves the right to transfer any employee to other locations
or opportunities to perform jobs of similar nature if necessary.

Employees who completed the probation period and wish to
resign must notify in writing to the Department Manager with
at least one month’s notice. Specific notification periods for
different positions are stipulated in the appointment letters.
While employees who fall under circumstances including
redundancy, termination without prejudice and termination
with prejudice shall have their employment terminated and
provided with one month’s notice or one month’s salary in
lieu of notice.

Equal Opportunity

The Company provides equal opportunities for employees in
respect of recruitment, training and development, job
advancement, and compensation and benefits. Employees are
not discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities on
the basis of gender, ethnic, background, religion, colour, age,
marital status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy
or any other discrimination prohibited by applicable laws of
Hong Kong.

Employee Communication

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging, the Company
regularly organizes gatherings with staff. In the reporting
period, the Company organized an annual dinner and a
Christmas party.

Employee Health and Safety

As office staff spends most of the time on computer work, the
Company installed protective screens on monitors to reduce
eye damage that may be caused by computer screens. Staff
also constantly reminds each other to maintain appropriate
viewing distance between eyes and computer screens,
maintain good posture when working and do stretching
exercises during rest breaks. The Company is in compliance
with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, Chapter
509 of the Laws of Hong Kong.

(ii)
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(iii)

(iv)

Development and Training

The Company encourages employees to participate in work-
related and personal development trainings. It provides
necessary on-job trainings and ample opportunities for
external trainings to employees. In the reporting period,
employees participated in duties-related courses or seminars
provided by external service providers. The trainings covered
topics including accounting standards, laws and regulations.

Labour Standard

In pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, there was no child nor forced labour in
the Company’s operation. All resumes, original identification
cards and relevant certificates of job candidates are first
checked by the Company during interviews. Candidates’
preceded employers may be contacted for provision of
references.

2. Operating Practices

(i)

(ii)
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Supply Chain Management
Procurement involved in the business is mainly for the
purchase of office daily necessities. Despite the relatively low
environmental and social risks involved in the Company’s
supply chain, the Company encourages best practices in
supply chain management.

Product Responsibility

Confidential and Customer Information

As stated in the employment contract, employees shall not at
any time during the course of the employment and after the
termination of the employment:

o use any confidential information for his/her own
purpose or for any purpose other than that of the
Company;

o divulge or communicate to any person any confidential

information except to those of the employees or officials
of the Company whose province it is to know the same;
or

o through any failure to exercise all due care and diligence
cause any unauthorized disclosure of any confidential
information (including without limitation), relating to
the dealings, organization, business, finance,
transactions or any other affairs to the Company or its
clients or customers.

(iii)
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All notes, memoranda, records and writings made by the
employees in relation to the business or concerning any of its
dealings or affairs or the dealings or affairs of any clients or
customers of the Company shall be handed over by him/her to
the Company from time to time on demand and in any event
upon his leaving the service of the Company and the
employees shall not retain any copy thereof. A breach of the
above provisions can be subject to dismissal without notice
and legal claim for damages. The Company is in compliance
with all applicable laws regarding confidential information and
data protection of the laws of Hong Kong.

(iii)  Anti-corruption
The Company abides by the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong. In relation to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. There was no
concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Company or its employees during the reporting
period.

3. Community Investment
The Company understands that engaging the community in which it
operates is an essential corporate responsibility. The Company will
consider contributing to activities and organizations that benefits the
community in the next reporting year.

Future Directions from the Company

In alignment with our vision on sustainability, we will continue to operate
our business with high ethical standards and provide sustainable returns to
our stakeholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors

and Senior Management
EENSAEEEERF

Executive Directors

Chen Xiaodong, aged 35, has been appointed as an executive director,
the chairman of the Board of the Company, and the chairman of both the
Executive Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company on 2
December 2016. He holds a bachelor degree of management from Royal
Holloway, University of London. He also holds a master of science degree
in process technology and business management from University of
Warwick. He has more than 10 years of experience in bank and securities
marketing and is familiar with the local market and has strong capabilities
in market exploration, customer appraisal and risk management. He also
has extensive experience of regulations and rules of financial market in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well as certain corporate financial
analysis skill.

Yu Qingrui, aged 45, is an executive director and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016. Mr. Yu
specializes in property investment and trading business in the People’s
Republic of China. After graduating from high-school in 1989, Mr. Yu
joined the shipping and trading business in the PRC. He was the general
manager of a shipping company before he became a private investor in
2003. In 2011,
Shanghai and served as their property investment manager. On 21 July
2014, Mr. Yu was engaged to provide advisory and consultancy services
relating to property investments and trading to Future World Financial
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of The Stock

Mr. Yu joined a marketing and management firm in

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572) (formerly known as
“Central Wealth Financial Group Limited”). Currently, Mr. Yu is an
executive director of Future World Financial Holdings Limited.

Lam Hay Yin, aged 37, is an executive director and a member of both the
Executive Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company since
20 July 2016. Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has extensive experience in property
investment, brokerage and trading fields.
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Biographical Details of Directors and

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kwok Chi Kwong, aged 53, is an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee,
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok
holds a master degree in business administration from the University of
Leicester. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) registered with
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), an
associate member of the HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwok has been a partner of JYC
& Co since 2005. He has gained more than 21 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance area.

Chen Youchun, aged 41, is an independent non-executive director and a
member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen holds degree of
Bachelor of Laws from Southwest University of Political Science and Law in
2000 and the University of Northumbria in 2011 and a Master degree in
Laws from Wuhan University in 2007. Mr. Chen is a foreign lawyer
registered with The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Chen has extensive
experience in corporate financing, private equity, venture capitals, IPO and
listing, and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Chen has been a partner of the
Shenzhen office of JunZeJun Law Offices since 2006. Mr Chen was an
independent director of Shenzhen Century Plaza Hotel Co. Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000033) from
November 2010 to December 2015. Mr. Chen is an independent non-
executive director of Culture Landmark Investment Limited (a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
stock code: 674). He is also an independent director of Shenzhen Qixin
Construction Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 002781), and an independent director of Hainan
Honz Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 300086).

Mai Qijian, aged 44, is an independent non-executive director and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 22 June 2016. Mr.
Mai was graduated from Sun Yat-Seng University with a bachelor’s degree.
He is an associate actuary of the PRC and an associate member of the
China Association of Actuaries. Mr. Mai has extensive experience in
management.

Senior Management
SEReAEERERERE

BYFHITES

BEN - 535% 0 RARBIZBIYFNTES  EREZEE
7 FMEReERARREEREEMNE - FEERFARE
FHABIHERELRMN - RATESHMASRESH
fil - BAGMAGEERBHARSIMAGERES
HEEATTRFRABESHMEBRABA - BRNE
it eFtkuBEEER -t —F&% -

BRERE 455 BARRBUIENTEENERZES %
MEESURIBREZEGKE - RAER_TTTFR_T
—— FRAABBUEAZR#REEASEZBET BT ITRH
R FRHARERNSARBLEN - REAEE AT BEM
oM ERD - FREER D ERE - FLERE - AR
B BRARERMETULEEANFHAELELR -
RELXA-_TT A NFTRAEEEZEMEBMAYDAEE
A REEER - ZF+—AE T —AF+=-RHMH
EAEFRINFHEBEERDERA R (—HRNRIEHFZ ST E
MHRAR > BHHRER - 000033) 2B EF - RREEIR AN
{LIZIREBR AR B IERTES (—EREBHER
SAERAREREMHAR] - BRGRSE  674) - HIRH 7
ARYTHEEXEERODER AR (—EARFNELR S
FrEmeaa - BOHREE - 002781) RBFRIRE B8 1D
BAR(—EMRFNBLHR S ETHAAE - BRONRK -
300086) 2 W E = -

BEHE M RE-RFRAAT_REZEREAR
FMTEERBEREZEGNRE - BRERENTILRE &
BB - RATHEREMETERBEMGELESE - &
TEHFLENERLR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017 3 49



Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management
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Senior Management

Szeto Pui Tong, Patrick, aged 57, joined the Group in March 2000, is the
Financial Controller and the Company Secretary of the Group. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Szeto has over 13 years of experience in finance
and accounting field. Mr. Szeto holds a master degree of business in
accounting from Monash University in Australia and is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts, the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries, the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the shareholders of China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Soft
Power Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group"”) set out on pages 58 to 144, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment assessment of available-for-sale equity investments
A (M SRR B 2 B EFT 15

The Group invested in certain equity securities listed in Hong
Kong and classified as available-for-sale equity investments.
As at 31 March 2017, the balance amounted to
HK$1,121,372,000, after an impairment of HK$3,947,000
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2017. The impairment assessment involved significant
management judgement and estimation, taking into account a
number of factors, including the market conditions and
volatility of the stock market in Hong Kong.

Related disclosures about the available-for-sale equity
investments are included in notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included evaluating the management’s
assessment methodology and the inputs and assumptions applied by
management in performing the impairment assessment at the end
of each reporting period, comparing the acquisition cost of equity
securities with fair value of the equity securities as at the year end
and subsequent to the year end. We also reviewed the change in fair
value of the equity securities during the year.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter
BRETER

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEAHRES

B ETEE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANENAEERREENER

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

FEWE A Z BB

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying value of the Group’s loans
receivable amounted to HK$180,656,000. The impairment
assessment requires significant management judgement and
estimation. Management considers various factors, including
the ageing of the loans receivable, credit reports of customers,
existence of any disputes, pattern of settlement with
customers, and other available information concerning the
creditworthiness of customers

Related discourse about loans receivable are included in notes
3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

Our audit procedures included reviewing impairment assessment on
the loans receivable by checking the ageing of the loans receivable
balance, settlement pattern during the year, post year-end receipts
from customers, the credit reports of customers and obtaining other
available information concerning the creditworthiness of customers.

BB EFREEERERRERERIRR - AFEZEFTRER -
FREMBTPUMZHKIE  TPEEREREMEHTEPERCRE
B AR E R 2R ERE

FHRAHEMER

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

ERAESAHHEGENAR - HENBRFRMEE
o MET B AR MR RPN EEN RS -

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

BMEGREUBRRELZERLTREELMER - HFITF
TEREMERBERENER 2 EFER
thereon.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B ZEAHRES

Other information included in the Annual
Report (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

FHRAHE AR (F)

MESAMBHRAMS - RMANBERMAEELMCER - &
FEUBET - ZEEMER TR EGA M BRRIEMER
FHREH TR ZBEABEADH AT B ERHERERAL -
ERBMEATZ TN MRRMRBEMER HRERE
R RAIFEZBREFHEE - Butm s - HFVLEERA
g -

EENGRMBBRREAREZER

BEAREEAAERBEEBSMASHEMZEBTHERE
ERBEBERAGOZBEERERERBEM AR 2B W
Wk WHERRRESAMBHRRZ BETFAERNF
IR MBI 2 EAHRBAIFEAMEEEE -

ERBGEAUBERRE - ERAREREEN G E5EE
BIEERe)  YEERBATHRERSEEERHZER
ARERHELERSTER BRI BERREEFE
1 BEREEBRNMELRLE  RABEELGERERNE -

BREE W BEEE U

FRRBIE ©

ERAREERITBREELE

?%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%Zﬁ
T

RO EIE - REGAMERRERET TEERRKIFR
HRTEH EAHRRLDEARRE - L ADERNN
BRZEHERS - RIER BT (FAZE) REERE
—AN—ERTVEEOFRE - B2 5 REE BB A
B RNTERARE NS MEMLMALE FRRRE
AHEE -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEAHRES

BRBORET SN BRRAREZE
£ (&)
ABRRBLSKTMNRE AT LREEBESBILAE
2@t - R EASRBULFERS @I - B
AL BRI - IRARENE EBREGERT
Y REAERERSEAMBERRA L EmBRE - A5
BR 4 SRR AT R EEA -

ERBEEBBRAERETEBRET  RIER T HEXEH
B RES T ERIEEAEE o TP

. B BIFNEHE B EF SRR MG 2R & M S MR 71
BEAREREUL 2 R - REFRATEAEF AR E
LeE - ARERFZRMEEFHEE  EREME
RZEW - ARKFAREIRER HE EE2E
o ERRL - SORBERAEEEEZ £ Bt REE
HRMFMEBH 2 ERFERRAM 2 ARRNAREEHER
FE R MG B2 ARG 2 B

. THREEERE 2 NEEE - ARFHEEEEST
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&
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B ZEAHRES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

REMRETREUBRRAREZE

£ (&)

. FEGAMBERZERIIBSN  EEANT B
HERE - DREAMSERRT T SRR HNEE -

. $ BEEEABRXERED 2HBENERTER
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T HRZ B o
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Wan Fung.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

23 June 2017

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEAHRES
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 March 2017 HE_-_ZT—+tF=fA=1+—HILFE

Notes 2017 =Z—tF 2016 ZZF— " 4F
B eE HK$’000 F 7 7T HK$'000 F7&7T
REVENUE N
Electronic and accessory products BFREEEM 2,525 650
Financial investments and services B 5488 I IR 75 (54,653) (473,088)
5 (52,128) (472,438)
Cost of electronic and accessory EEETK
products sold BLEE mp A (2,496) (642)
Brokerage and commission expenses Ko BRARASRAX (761) (2,758)
(3,.257) (3,400)
Gross loss Eti! (55,385) (475,838)
Other income and gains H AU A R Wz 5 4,312 12,875
Administrative expenses TR (81,805) (40,004)
Research costs TR A - (7,024)
Other operating expenses HithEERY (6,233) (375)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBA R 2 YWz (EE) 30 15,566 (85,786)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HH & A] (S AR AR
equity investments &z EE (48,186) (31,322)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale Al 4k B E AR
equity investments RERERRE 14 (3,947) (669,615)
Fair value gains on equity investments at 3% 818 2812 A FAE 5 Bk 2 LA
fair value through profit or loss, net W&z N THEWE - FE 20,250 82,549
Finance costs MiEE R 6 (969) (204)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBiAIE B 7 (156,397) (1,214,744)
Income tax expense FTisif s 10 - (1
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEERBE (156,397) (1,214,745)
Attributable to: FEAS
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZSWN (156,397) (1,252,637)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M 2 - 37,892
(156,397) (1,214,745)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE SRR EERES
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EEAEMN
OF THE PARENT BRER 12
Basic EHR HK$(0.02) & T HK$(0.18) 7T
Diluted g HK$(0.02) 3 7T HK$(0.18) 77T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
ll‘/j_\ éﬁq& %

Year ended 31 March 2017 HZE_—-Z

—tF=ZA=t—HLFE

2017=2—tF 2016 ZZF—~"4F
HK$'000 F & T HK$'000 F7#& 7T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEFE (156,397) (1,214,745)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) EH 2 mEWKz (FiE)
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified RAFEE B EN D EEER 2
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hih 2 mEes :
Available-for-sale investments: A ERE
Equity investments: RAIRE :
Changes in fair value NEEESH) 444,744 =
Debt component of acquired convertible BT ES 2
bonds: B EED
Reclassification adjustment for gains REERTABRZZ
included in profit or loss upon disposal W B0 EFHE - (2,577)
Exchange differences: b 5,258 -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign & GINETE >
operations [E 5 =58 (1,199) 347
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon 1A H & B A 7 k5 [0]
disposal of subsidiaries b R B 881 (346)
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon  FAEUH sE — & BB A &6
deregistration of a subsidiary 1 0] B 3% Bh 4 890 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) AEEHM2HE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Wz (EE) - BE#%E 445,316 (2,576)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) ZAFEZMH
FOR THE YEAR Wz (E58) B 288,919 (1,217,321)
Attributable to: FEAS
Owners of the parent RARIEE A 288,919 (1,255,177)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR - 37,856
288,919 (1,217,321)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B IEAR R

31 March 2017 =E—+F=F=+—H

Notes 2017 =Z2—tF 2016 —F— "
(ks HK$’000 F i 7T HK$'000 F#7T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment LESN =N 13 3,631 3,216
Available-for-sale equity investments A SR AR E 14 1,121,372 655,121
Deposits b 19 27,947 4,417
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 1,152,950 662,754
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Equity investments at fair value through 3% :@18z54R2 A FESIFR 2
profit or loss e A& & 15 49,500 173,177
Loans receivable TEWE X 16 180,656 -
Trade receivables EUE 5 8RR 17 - -
Loan to a director A—ZEEEXK 18 31,900 -
Prepayments, deposits and other TERIE  Re Kk
receivables o e GRIE 19 5,400 25,517
Cash and bank balances B4 NIRTTETE 20 4,045 86,467
271,501 285,161
Assets of a disposal group classified as D AFIELHE 2
held for sale HEEEEE 11 - 77,629
Total current assets MENEERE 271,501 362,790
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables R E SR 21 502 3
Tax payable R FTE - 179
Other payables and accruals Hib e RIE K EETE A 22 21,796 40,906
Shareholder loan R E = 23 - 50,000
Total current liabilities mEIRERE 22,298 91,088
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 249,203 271,702
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAEBR
LIABILITIES REAE 1,402,153 934,456
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FERBEE
Notes payable EANZEE 24 86,574 -
Net assets FEE 1,315,579 934,456
60  China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEEHE hRNKEBER A T



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR OR 3R

31 March 2017 =ZE—+tF=A=+—H

Notes 2017=Z—t%F 2016 ZZF—~"4F
s HK$'000 F & T HK$'000 F7#& 7T
EQUITY L
Equity attributable to owners of BAREEA
the parent Lz
Share capital RE R 26 89,651 85,004
Reserves B 27 1,225,928 849,452
Total equity R 1,315,579 934,456
Chen Xiaodong Yu Qingrui
RR B2 3R REB
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ IE@/)ILE%

Year ended 31 March 2017 HE=ZT—+&F=A=+—HILEFE

Notes 2017 =F—+t4& 2016 ZZF— " 4F
liEss HK$’000 F 7 7T HK$'000 F7&7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETEH 2
ACTIVITIES HEeERE
Loss before tax BRE% AT EE (156,397) (1,214,744)
Adjustments for: SERBIIE B {EE -
Bank interest income HRITA B UA 5 9 (44)
Finance costs HMIEER 969 204
Depreciation e 7 50 434
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AREERANRE 2
equity investments B EE 3,947 669,615
Impairment of items of property, plant ~ #12 &= &
and equipment HEIEERE - 3
Impairment of trade receivables FEUE 5 B ORI E 1,175 -
Write-off of items of property, plant £ 6 =L E
and equipment Wi k& #E B 7 3,015 3
Write-off of deposits and other M sE IR K
receivables H A fE U GRIE 7 436 300
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE  HE &
plant and equipment I8 B WS 7 (95) (7,778)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A 72 EE, (W) 30 (15,566) 85,786
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary — EUEzEM —REKT B A 7 2 Yk 5 (4,208) -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEE
equity investments AL E 7 B8 48,186 31,322
Fair value gains on equity investments & @B 2512 A T EFIR 2
at fair value through profit or loss, A& 2
net NI EWE R (20,250) (82,549)
Equity-settled share option AR HE4EE 2
arrangements, net BARELHE - FRE 29 60,600 (1,579)
(78,147) (519,027)
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivable  JEUE FZR 4> (32 00) (180,656) 165,000
Decrease in equity investments at fair %8185 EQ\EFTEE\JEEZ
value through profit or loss IRAIRE R A 143,927 248,094
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B E 5 BRFUR (35 hn) (1,175) 1,442
Increase in loan to a director m—%& %%%ﬁ?ﬂi‘ﬂﬂ (31,900) =
Increase in prepayments, deposits and  TERIKIE « &S R H i FELK
other receivables ﬁAIEi‘a‘jJD (57,696) (98,701)
Decrease in restricted bank balances 2R HIRITEER L - 2,768
Increase in trade payables FE B 5 BRFR3E 0 499 -
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hih e zB LT E R
and accruals #an Crd) 8,457 (6,208)
Exchange realignment B i, 7 (1,199) 266
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SGEHERER
Year ended 31 March 2017 &Z-—ZT—+F=A=+—HILFE

Notes 2017 =Z—tF 2016 ZZF—~"4F
s HK$'000 F & T HK$'000 F7#& 7T
Cash used in operations KEXEFARS (197,890) (206,366)
Interest paid EAFIE (31 (196)
Interest element of finance lease rental FERER SR
payments FEEBH - @)
Tax paid BEfHIE (179) =
Net cash flows used in operating EESEENETA 2
activities RemE 8 (198,100) (206,570)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEH
ACTIVITIES RERE
Purchases of items of property, plant ~ BEEW¥ - B&E &
and equipment RAEIEE 28(b) (18) (3,229
Net proceeds from disposal of HEMBARZ

subsidiaries FriS s Ia S 58 30 168,504 181,227

Deregistration of a subsidiary BUH Tt — R A 7 (12) =
Deposit paid for acquisition of a WiE—fEHE ARz

subsidiary BfET& 19 (22,000) -
Acquisition of available-for-sale equity Yt a] fit tH &

investments IR & (197,653) (1,359,359)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE  WERREEE 2

property, plant and equipment Fr{S5k18 95 6.580
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- H & At B ER AR E 2

sale equity investments Frissk1B 124,013 3,301
Interest received B UF S 9 44
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & & &8 TS, (FTA) 2

activities RE e FHE 72,938 (1,171,436)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BEED

ACTIVITIES RERE
Net proceeds from placing of new Al & F AR (9 P15

shares FIFFEE 26() - 998,285
Net proceeds from the exercise of bonus 7T{EALFRARAEE 2

warrants FT{S RIE 5 58 26(ii), 28(a) 591 27,972
Net proceeds from issue of notes BITRIR Z TS RIBFHE 24 92,100 -
Loan advance from/(repaid to) a kB (EE)

shareholder —BRRZER (50,000) 50,000
Capital element of finance lease rental E&EHER SN2

payments B AR ED - (512)
Receipt in advance for the exercise of — 1T{FALFIRAZ RS

bonus warrants T FIE 22 - 31,013
Repayment of excess subscription AR AR (D REIINREE

application of rights shares B5E 2 B - (171,871)
Net cash flows from financing activities BE ESNEL B REFE 42,691 934,887
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HE-ZT—+F=A=+—HILFE

Notes 2017 =Z2—tF 2016 —F— "
(ks HK$’000 F i 7T HK$'000 F#7T
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH BE&RBEEZEER
EQUIVALENTS WARE (82,471) (443,119)
Cash and bank balances at beginning of F#]2 3R % &
year HRITHETT 86,516 529,660
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, 9N SR &i&h
net FE - FE - (25)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBER
AT END OF YEAR ReEEER 4,045 86,516
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HERBEESEHEEH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEEZDN
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRTTETE 20 4,045 86,467
Cash and cash equivalents included in 5t ARFELEHESEE 2B E
the disposal group held for sale MRE&EFEEIER 1 - 49
4,045 86,516
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Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate and Group Information

China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal
place of business of the Company was located at Rooms 1603-5,
16/F., Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The principal place of business of the Company subsequently
changed to Unit 6706B-08A, Level 67, International Commerce
Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong in April 2017.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of the
trading and distribution of electronic and accessory products and
other merchandise, financial investment and trading, and money
lending business.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2017 are as follows:

BA A5 SRR M AL

31 March 2017 =E—+tF=A=+—H

ARREEER

FEHENRBEEER AR ([ARE]) ARERE
HfMKZ 2 ERAR c RARBIEBEEMIEN AT
BT S TITE39ERANE 1612 1603-5% c A2
BXEBLEMBHEN T +FMNART AT EN
BEM @B 1 5IRIKE 5 /E 5 6712 6706B-08A = °

ARREEEBRIREZR - FR - MBAREESE
BEERREERDHETREEEmREMER - M7
RANEEXEBURREE -

MEBARZER
R=B—tF=A=1-0 ARATEHBAFZ
BT -

Percentage of equity

attributable to
the Company
ARREEREZEDL
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ALK BRTEER
NEEB EBLEE LR AR A H# M FEXRED
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
EBERRES 1% REER
Sino Electronics Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100 Investment holding
HEEARES Ve REER
Chongging Electronics Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of electronic and
accessory products
FAEFARAA BB 28T BEESTRREED
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Us$2 = 100 Provision of administrative
services
139X BB AT BB YE REITHRS
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Notes to Financial Statements

B REERAR MY RE

31 March 2017 —Z—tF=A=+—H

1. Corporate and Group Information

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2017 are as follows: (continued)

REAREEER (F)

B AT &R (&)
R-F—+F=A=+—80 ARATEMNBAFAZ

FELT (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable to
the Company
FAREEREZEDLL
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
MR R BRALEER
ARER ERKE il %N B B FEEREH
Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of finance services
BEUBAR AT i 2787 R RS
Main Purpose Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment in and trading of
Hong Kong securities
RERARES /BE (= RERBERS
Desert Gold Limited (formerly known  British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 Investment in and trading of
as “NWS Holdings Limited”) Hong Kong securities
(BT [NWS Holdings Limited |) EBEARES/BE (e BRERBEES
Celestial Lodge Limited#* British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
BBHERRES (= REER
Top Billion Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Money lending
BEHBEERAR BB 2787 WE
& Celestial Lodge Limited was established and registered as a limited liability # Celestial Lodge Limited ® =Z—RFENAZ+ L HIR
company under the British Virgin Islands law on 29 August 2016. BEBARARSEZEAMK L AERAA -
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the @ AREBL RSB L R EERBE LMK S

Ernst & Young global network.

NAEZ ©
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Corporate and Group Information
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

On 30 March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a related company to dispose of its entire equity
interests in PLD Holdings Limited and Pacific Light Data
Communication Company Limited (the “PLD Group”) which were
set up for the construction of submarine cable system but had not
yet commenced operation up to 31 March 2016. Pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreement, the disposal was subject to the
completion of certain conditions. As at 31 March 2016, the
conditions were still incomplete and the PLD Group was classified as
disposal group held for sale. Further details of disposal group held
for sale are included in note 11 to the financial statements and the
Company’s announcement dated 31 March 2016. The disposal was
completed on 13 May 2016. Further details are included in note 30
to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group disposed of its
entire equity interests in certain subsidiaries to certain related parties
for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$169,645,000 (2016:
HK$182,500,000). Further details are included in note 30 to the
financial statements.

Pursuant to an approval of deregistration issued by the local
authority, Dongguan Chongging Electrical Limited was deregistered
on 30 June 2016.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 —E—+tF=A=+—H

REAREEER (F)

MEB AR ZER (&)

R=T—ARE=ZA=1+H AEEE—FBEEAR:]
S EE Wi 0 LAH S PLD Holdings Limited 5 A S5 5%
BHEBNEARAB ([PLDER]) 22 - PLD&E
B ENARREREABRSE  EBRE_T—AF
A=+t HMRBRAZEE - REEERZ  HEF
BBERE TIRGZKERAEE - RZZ—~F=A
=+—B ZEERHEHRTHK  WPLDEEWHEL
FEHEZHESRRE - FELE 2L EEE#E—
BERAPHERERMTE N RARRAHE =T —<F=
A=+—BzA&E - HEFHEER=T—"FHA
T=AEK o #E— L BERR P IEIRERME30

BE—TtF=-A=1+—"HILEFE AKHEAET
METHEANETHEAR 228 5HE - AR
{B % 169,645,000 7T (=& —7< 5 : 182,500,000 8
TT) © #E— SR BEER M B REKMTE30

RIBE MR 2 BUEEMIE X - RETRETH
RARER-_F—A"FRNA=T+RBUBENM -

ERIHEERRUARFEAEEREERIEZES
BRASEEEFEERZHNDZARAMBRR - &
RRBEMNB AT ZERIIHESRIBBNILE
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ER IR M

31 March 2017 —Z—tF=A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation

70

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for listed equity investments which have been measured at
fair value. The disposal group held for sale is stated at the lower of
its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell as further
explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1 REE%E

WEFBHRRIDIZBERBGANMAG ([HESTHA
@J)ﬁﬁfﬁzfﬁf’éﬂﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬂw(F%%Eﬁ%#&%ﬁﬂ'm
(2 TE%%%S%EM%&QH’EH'J - BREER(EHE
SRR RRE) - AH%QHEE‘J&%;‘%’AE
1'm1§‘]24&&§%ﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁ% @ &tﬁﬂﬂéﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬁiﬁ?
RAEMmE - R AFEFEZ EMRARERID
AN FE 2 A PrEEAL - AR & 2 B E R BIRREE
RAFEREEXARE ZHRIEETR - thEH 7%
WRABT(DETD AT  REEREBIN - RERE
BEEETAL

FERBEEE
BAMKEHRRBEAR A RENBAR (5EA [RE
BENEE-_T—+t&F=A=1+—"HLLEEZNBER
i‘%oWJ;""ﬁBEEZIS AlEE R EERH 2 EE (8
REEBHEER) EAKBESEREH R MmY A&
BREZRABRZAEFEGENEREHBEEHR
ZHENZEZSORETFAEERFEHEER
BURIARMER 2R AN ) K - AIRARE iz
TEHR -

WARABEERMEER PNAZBREHRERE
SERLERN - AEERFEERERRELHRBE
NEZEMERBEEERER B :

@ BEAHSZHEMEREREAZEORE

(b) HMEORBEZEN &

(C) $§E. XK*E&/EE XK
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 —E—+tF=A=+—H

F%’JE‘;’E (%)

ma /\E BE% (&)

BB 1 Bl B s R ot B AR R RIME R 2 SR BR R AR R
SEBRRE - B A R 2 EE B NS B ERS G
Z ARRGa AR WEZEGERERIE—EHEE
EE °

BakAtE2HREEAERENASESARESR
AR IR R RS - BIf Ik B Ak S P AR i 2 7 A S Al
iR - TAEEAKERERNRZHRSEH 2 EER
BENEE  #zm - WE - AXMRSREINEGS
BB 2 BB o

WA FE R BERRA LIRS 2 ZIAREFHE
—IRRLZIEEE  AEEBHMFEEREOREHERE
HRZEGIE - RNBARRAEREDE Z ) (A&
KEEHIR) RARKIIEEZER S

i 75 52 [ SR 5 T IR X B 2 P U - R AR L RERR (1) 7%
MEBERREE (BERBE) RAE () EAI3FHE Hxﬁé
= 2 BREE R (iil) FT A s 2 RETIE R Z 88 WHERR ()
BERREZRTFE - (i) EMERERE Z A FE i)
AR Z (AR R AR B AL © 1h$EIEET%Hj
ERHEEREE  LAXEME2EAKREERNA
SEEEKRD - TIETE Jdiﬂﬁﬂ%/‘ii%ﬁ DEEE
R A ©
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March2017 =Z—tF=A=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 S BEEXZ2EBRIEE
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for REBERANEE M MR T & RN AT 3R] AL
the first time for the current year's financial statements. BRI BB SR
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the CHEY T p s L REERE  EHEE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception F105% - BEUBRE ABRZ BI9ME R
(2011) ZERE12RRBEBSE
RN 2857 (—F——%F)
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of CHES I p s WhEa & X ERm &
Interests in Joint Operations 1158 FE
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts BEMBRELRE 1458 EEBELKA
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative BRI BB G ERE 15% wEEaT
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods ERIBR G ERE 165 BEANERSHZ
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation REBEHERIZE 3855 A ZER 0%
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants ERIBBGTENE 165 BX £EMEY
and HKAS 41 REBEFTERE 415
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial ERIBB G ERE 27 B UMBHREEDE
(2011) Statements =55
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs ZE——FE-FTUFE  EE]ZEBEBYIE
2012-2014 Cycle A FIEHE HEZER
The adoption of the above revised standards has had no significant RN DA ERTER B Z SRR L BEERNV B
financial effect on these financial statements. .
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22

Amendments to HKFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 28
included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Leases®

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

Transfers of Investment Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities’

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2017

% |

o S

BATEERAR MY RE

—T—+F=A=+—H

23 EFEMEERERZEBMBRS

AREE EN U F TS BMR RN A T 2 RME R R E
M2 Fa] RER] BB MBI E LR -

CHEVEEIp R =
FE25
CHEVEEIp R =
FEAH

BB EERIE 955
BRI BB B IR E LR
F10H R EFB B LA
28R (=T ——F)
FRM IR EERFE 1555

CHE s
% 155F

BRI EERE 165
CHEY R e
BRI BB G ERIE 1258

BRI BB G ERIZE 4058
B8 (ERI RS 2E
ZER)REE225%
BRI —F—mFE
ZE-NFHEYZ
FREUEBZNEE
IS ELERIE 12557
BRI —F—mFE
ZE-NFHRHCFE
BERENEBITE
WEERNFE 15
BRI —F—mFE
ZE-NFHRHCFE
HEBENEEGT
ZERIZE 28 5%

KR B3 5649
DHEREE?
—OHERE BB
ERFE 2T A
A B S H &R
FAFREEE A
£ TA?
KREZBRYENF]
RKARETEZAZ
BEML ST E
EFAE#KMa?

BBEE B SR
FISHEFER
Yza?

&3

WEEETE)

BAREL IR

BEHIREE'
HEREYF?
INER 5 REBNE?

WEREMER

BARRNE BT
R

REERAIRE EPFE
ZRE?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

R-T—tF— A A2 RRAKRZFRERRERER
R-Z—-N\F—A— Bz &Rz FERRER
RZT—NF— A — B 2&R%k 2 FERREER
170 7R 7 E 5 i) A 2 B B T G ER A

58w oN o
5w N o

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact AEBBERZEEH I REBTTE BT EREERR
BRI 2 R BT AT - MR R E a2 S 5]
MESIERI BB B RE LN ST HAKELEEER
MBRREESERTE -

of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not
yet in a position to state whether they would have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2017 —Z—tF=A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

74

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its listed equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

24 TESHBERBE

DNFEETE
AEENSRERARBZAFEFEE ETRAKE -
AFEARHAERETE2EEEEFRFTHESR
EAWRRERAEAXNZER - AFERENE
RERNEEXBBENEIEZMNS  MHELEMS
ANBERBERANNTSETHEEEREER
BN ZMEE - TRBHEENTHABANEEF
- —HEERBBENAFERAERDRATSZ2
HEERHEEXBBEBRRANKRR  LRRM S
SEEPEKELENRTE °

FEeMBENATEFEDNERMS2EERBBRE
ERZREREAEIGELE T RINEKEERE
RERRACHZEEMESLENRNEED

AEEFERERERE AT ENBIRAHITEATFE
MEERMN R CERARIBEREABELEE
AE A A B R A B
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets and a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 —E—+tF=A=+—H

24 FESTBEBE (F)

AFEH B ()
BRAFEEVBRRAGFEXRBENAEEERE
& DEREATEAEREM S BEEANKEER
BARBOER N AFERR -

FER — REREEXABNERTSNERE
(RESAE)

F_EH — ESEERABARBITERIHEEER
BHRATEFEREATENGEN A

FZEHR — REEBRRBABEITIERAHEE
SAEREAFENRBEINA

MEREFEERPBRRERNEELEENS - A
KBNS HREMRBBEFNFERR (RS R FER
ERRMEBEANREERBARE) EEEER
ZHRRBHELEER -

FERMEERME

i A IR BN H B E R A B EE T FERE R
(ERBERDBARKEREZHERERIN) - Bl
ETEENAKESE - EENFTIRE S FEREEK
ReELBUNEREERAQNTFEGAREGE RE)
MHEKRATE Y ENEEERE - RIFEHEE
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31 March 2017 —Z—tF=A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

76

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

24 TESTHBEREE (&)

FEMEERE (E)

B RSEEN B E R AR R E S BT - 37
fEEAEER - i BARSRERTRRRENS
AT 1 0 1 M O R 8 T R R MO B BT 9 B S 3
REARME - HEBRRELHNE BRRANERE
BEN S —HMFSIERIRG -

REREPRETAHE  AEEREEAEEEARLZ
MEBBENBFEXERINER - MAERAZES
RHBE - ZEEZAIKNESHEATIALG - GEEE
ER R E SR HEr MR B - BECRERZZE
ERERET T ARE - A BMERNESEIFE
PBEEHRERITE 2 REE  BRREEFE
EHERNEELEREEE - 2FREEBRZED
ABEEH 2 ER/R -

BEAL
—FERATEBZMEAL - -

@ HABALTHZALZEE - Mz AL
() PSRRI EE
(il HAEBEEARFES : X

i) AAEEAFEESATZEIEEEE
A
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2017 —ZE—+F=A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHEEHBE (&)

(continued)

Related parties (continued) BEAL (E)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued) —IHERRAEEZBEAL - fi (B
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) %A ABFETINEMIEE 2 EES -

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERBEASEBR-—SBEZKERT:
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) —ERBAZERB(XEZ—FBRBIHA
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of Al B ARKRRNBAR) 2HER
the other entity); AlSEE AT

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (iiy ZERBEAEEAR-—F=-AZAER
third party; 7l

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy, —ERBAEF-FEBEZAEQRA M3
other entity is an associate of the third entity; —ERRE=FERZHENT

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the () ZBEARESESBAAEEEMRECE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity BEREE N mR L 2R ENETE
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (Vi)  ZEREX()FTHERIATIESI S RE S
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over (i) RE@OFBIATHZEBEEATE
the entity or is a member of the key management NEBZER(KZEBZERREE
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and EIBERE : &

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZERENHEE ZfﬂTEXE NGNS
part, provides key management personnel services to B AEERARREIEEEAER

the Group or to the parent of the Group. 7% o
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the

cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual

value over the following estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms or
3 years, whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles, furniture, 3 to 5 years

fixtures and equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale
regardless of whether the Group retains a non-controlling interest in
its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 —E—+tF=A=+—H

24 FESTBEBE (F)

FRBEERFFHEZHERE
HERDEERNEEE RAEEEEBHERS
MEREEAKE - ASBEABELE  ELBER
T BERMEEBATERARDSLE  REFS
HEZSAERHEXENESHERREERATS
B - DBANEEE HEARMEAERAMRE
FOBRRBIELE  MARHERAEBEERAM
F5 1 B B 2 .2 SE AR 25 -

SEAREHEZ ERDEER N EEE (LAY
REBEERSN) REDERAFERBERAZ R
EEEE -

HE

N EEEGEZEBASDEHREARRE THES
ZHETIHEREHE - MAKERAMRE  ZEL
EHE 2 ENEENERANEREFT ABRR

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017 £38 79



Notes to Financial Statements
B ER IR M

31 March 2017 —Z—tF=A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

80

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policy set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other operating expenses for receivables.
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82

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or
loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability
and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

(@)  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

(b)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (i) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (ii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance amount. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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(continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
accruals, shareholder loan and notes payable.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and cash at banks,
which are not restricted as to use.
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(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same tax authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b)  for the rendering of services, on the straight-line basis over the
contract period;

(c)  the profit or loss on trading of equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, on the transaction dates when the
relevant contract notes are exchanged; and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
rate method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to
use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.
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(continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using the binomial model, further details of which
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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(continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of Mainland China, subsidiaries
of the Company operating in Mainland China participate in a local
municipal government retirement benefit scheme (the “Mainland
Scheme”) whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of the basic salaries of their employees to the Mainland
Scheme to fund their retirement benefit obligations regarding all
existing and future retired employees of the subsidiaries. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Mainland Scheme is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the Mainland Scheme
mentioned above. Contributions under the Mainland Scheme are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred. There are no
provisions under the Mainland Scheme whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely than not)
that future taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence.
Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the future
performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the
deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors are
also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing evidence
that it is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary
differences, tax planning strategies and the periods in which
estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets and related financial models and budgets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and to the extent that there is
insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be
available within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax
losses carried forward, and the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and recognises
movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair value
declines, management makes assumptions about the decline in value
to determine whether there is an impairment should be recognised
in profit or loss. During the year ended 31 March 2017, an
impairment loss of HK$3,947,000 has been recognised (2016:
HK$669,615,000). The carrying amount of the Group’s available-for-
sale financial assets as at 31 March 2017 was HK$1,121,372,000
(2016: HK$655,121,000) in aggregate, details of which are set out
in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of loans receivable

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there
is any objective evidence that a loan receivable is impaired. To
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the
Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or
significant delay in payments. Where there is objective evidence of
impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are
estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. Details are set out in notes 16 and 18.

Valuation of share options

As described in note 29 to the financial statements, the Company
engaged an independent firm of professionally qualified valuer to
assist in the valuation of the share options granted during the years
ended 31 March 2017. The fair values of options granted under the
share option schemes were determined using the binomial option
pricing model. The significant inputs into the model included share
price at the grant date, risk-free interest rate, exercise price and
expected volatility of the underlying shares. When the actual results
of the inputs differ from management'’s estimate, this will have an
impact on share option expenses and the related share option
reserve of the Company. The fair value of the share options granted
by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2017 was
HK$60,600,000 (2016: Nil). The share option expense of
HK$60,600,000 (2016: Nil) was recognised during the year ended
31 March 2017.
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Operating Segment Information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s operating
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary of details of
the operating segments are as follows:

(@ the electronic and accessory products segment trades
electronic and accessory products;

(b)  the financial investments and services segment comprises
financial investments and trading, debt and equity investments
and money lending business; and

() the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income and expense items; research and development of
integrated circuit technology and property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before
tax except that bank interest income, gain/(loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries, finance costs and head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude shareholder loan, receipt in advance for
the exercise of the Company’s bonus warrants, notes payable and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There are no intersegment sales and transfers between the segments
(2016: Nil).

KRETHEHN
AREZEEEBIREREBUEIUREZER
BBBABETRRRER - AREE—EEH AL
=BRSSBT - M RAIRGE S RRIAR
2 BB RATBERARMES S ETA - EEH R
ZBBREWT :

@) BEFREEEmRS>E BESTREEEMR:

b) BMBRERRBIE BEMBRENEER:
BB REARREARREER &

(0 ®EREMHE SBECFWRARMIIER
S ERERRBIMA R FEIRE -

ERERERDERRR NG IRRD AEEAEE
RENEZ HE - DBERBATRAIRES R,
IBEITRE  RINFHE R ZIRRRITHEMEA - HEH
BARZWE(B1R)  MBBAREHRARER
S RIS D B A, B IR AR S B AR B R B A S
A/ EBERETET A -5

DREETBRRE MRTETFAREMAR D BCAEH
RABEE ARZETEEIRFHEAERER -

SEEETEERRER  THRAR RN REER
ZIRWHIE - BNRBAREMRSRAREARE
B AAZFaEIRFEERERE -

DEZETEEERERER(CT—NF 8 -
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. B&58BER (&)

Electronic and accessory  Financial investments

products and services Corporate and others Consolidated
ETREREER BBERERRE TEREM oy
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
TE—tF ZERF ZE-tF ZTE ZE-tF ZTF ZE-tfF %
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$S'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TEL FHET AL FET THL TR THL
Segment revenue: AEWA
Sales to external customers  [FISNREFEHHE 2,525 650 - - - - 2,525 650
Losses from financial HERE R REER
investments and services - - (54,653)  (473,088) - - (54,653)  (473,088)
Total e 2,525 650  (54,653)  (473,088) - - (52,128) (472,438)
Segment results PEEE 3,011 7,099 (87,755) (1,094,506)  (86,170)  (39,996)  (170,914) (1,127,403)
Reconciliation: i -
Bank interest income RITMBHA 9 4“
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEHBLRRZ
subsidiaries Wt/ (EB) 15,566 (85,786)
Unallocated expenses AOBERZ (89) (1,395)
Finance costs BBER (969) (204)
Loss before tax BHiEIER (156,397) (1,214,744)
Income tax expense GRS - (0
Loss for the year AEEBE (156,397) (1,214,745)
Assets and liabilities BEREAE
Segment assets PEEE - 213 1,387,002 553,132 32,553 384,652 1,419,555 937,997
Reconciliation: Hif -
Unallocated assets APEBE 4,896 87,547
Total assets BERE 1,424,451 1,025,544
Segment liabilities NERE 756 5,694 2,478 170 18,085 2,776 21,319 8,640
Reconciliation: i -
Unallocated liabilities RABAE 87,553 82,448
Total liabilities BEBE 108,872 91,088
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. K& HEER (&)

Other segment information BEiomER
Electronic and Financial investments Corporate and
accessory products and services others Consolidated
EFREEEM BERER R PEREM Ga
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

“E-tf ZFF ZB-tF —FT5F ZB-tE —F-5F ZB-tE “F-5F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TR TR TET  TEx  TET  TEx AR

Depreciation E - 59 - - 50 375 50 434

Impairment losses recognised in - PMEZ KR 2 BEEE
the statement of profit or loss 1,175 3 3,947 669,615 - - 5122 669,618

Write-off of items of property,  #i#5#1% « BER

plant and equipment RiEER - - - - 3,015 3 3,015 3
Wiite-off of deposits and other i §#12 4 & Lt e Y38
receivables - - - 300 436 - 436 300
Gain on disposal of itemsof ~ HEWE - BE R
property, plant and REEE 2
equipment - 079 - - (95) - 95  (1,778)
Fair value gains on equity FREREATESER
investments at fair value ZRARE
through profit or loss, net DFENE  FE - - (20250  (82,549) - - (20250)  (82,549)
Loss on disposal of available-for- & A[ &R AR E
sale equity investments ZER - - 48,186 31322 - - 48,186 31,322
Equity-settled share option RigEs 2 EE
arrangements, net T R - - - - 60,600 (1,579) 60,600 (1,579)
Capital expenditure* BARSL * - - - - 3,480 3,229 3,480 3,229
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. 3 BARY BIEREME - BB KEE -
Geographical information 1@ & R
The Group's revenue and non-current assets are predominantly AEEBWARERBEEETERE E—HE(HF) -
attributable to a single geographical region, Hong Kong, which is MEBEBINARNEE T Z G RSEPTEN - Bt - I
the Group’s principal place of business and operations. Therefore, 2R DT ©

no analysis by geographical region is presented.
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Operating Segment Information (continued) 4.
Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$2,525,000 (2016: HK$650,000) was
derived from sales by the electronic and accessory products segment

to a single customer.

Revenue and Other Income and Gains 5.
Revenue represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods

sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts, losses on
disposal of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and
interest income from money lending business during the year.

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 =ZE—tF=A=+—H

RETEER (E)
EBFEEFZER

A #)2,525,000 8 70 (ZF — 74 : 650,000 7T) 5K
BEFREEERSPENE—RFELZHEE -

WA R B At YA K W 58

WA TH SRR PO RS R R E B T 2 B
EHE  HEEEARRATEIIRLBRARE 2
BRRA BRI 2 A BYAZ 85 -

WA R E AW A B Mz 2 AT

2017 =8 —+ & 2016 —Z— /"4

HK$'000 F & 7t HK$'000 F /7T
Revenue LON
Sale of goods HEEm 2,525 650
Losses on disposal of equity investments at & & BiEasiz A FEFIEY
fair value through profit or loss* R AR E 7 518 * (59,378) (473,088)
Interest income from money lending REMEEBRZ A EWA
business 4,725 -
(52,128) (472,438)
Other income and gains Hg A R s
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant &Y% - BE K& #HEE
and equipment 2 Wz 95 7,778
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary BB —REM B AR 2 s 4,208 -
Bank interest income SRITA BULA 9 44
Government grants BT fE L - 3,556
Service income BRI U A - 966
Others Hith - 531
4,312 12,875
& The gross proceeds from the disposal of equity investments at fair value - FA - HEFBEREATEIRZRERE ZFE

through profit or loss for the year were approximately HK$96,059,000
(2016: HK$731,618,000).

X TH M F 49 596,059,000/ L( = T — N F
731,618,000/ 7T) °
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6. Finance Costs 6. MKEHR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: HMISBROMNT :

2017 =Z—t4& 2016 = — N
HK$'000 F3& 7T HK$'000 T8 7T
Interest on finance leases RMERERE - 8
Interest on bank overdrafts SRITESFE 31 196
Interest on notes payable JERZEHBHE 938 -
969 204

7. Loss before Tax 7. BREAEE

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

AEBEBBAIEENGR,GIA) A TER

2017 =Z—tF 2016 —Z— " F
HK$000 F & 7t HK$'000 F/&7T
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 2,496 642
Depreciation (note 13) PrEe (MisE13) 50 434
Research costs* THZT R AN * - 7,024
Employee benefit expense (including BERAMNFAX (BIEEEHE
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): GEEDE
Wages and salaries ITERH® 7,245 12,229
Equity-settled share option IR 4E B 2 FEAR e 2o B - HEE x>
arrangements, net** 16,500 (1,579)
Retirement benefit scheme RIRBAIGH B LR >+
contributions* ** 312 621
24,057 11,271
Equity-settled share option arrangements to R Efth & B2 EE R HREAE
other eligible participants ZHEIRRELEE 44,100 -
Minimum lease payments under operating & &FHEIE | v KA E (K
leases 5,466 9,675
Auditor's remuneration %S AN & 1,500 1,685
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 BRFRE 1,175 =
Impairment of items of property, plant and %1% - &&= & 54518 B RE
equipment - 3
Write-off of items of property, plant and ~ ##1% - ME L& EEE
equipment 3,015 3
Write-off of deposits and other receivables il 52 & K £ 1th & U 71 18 436 300
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEW2E « BE RBEEE 2 ik
and equipment (95) (7,778)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary BUH T — P B A 7 2 W s (4,208) -
Foreign exchange differences, net bE i =55 E - 8
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Loss before Tax (continued)

* Research costs for the year ended 31 March 2016 included wages and
salaries of HK$388,000, which had been included in the employee benefit
expense disclosed above.

*x The total equity-settled share option expense for the year ended 31 March
2017 was HK$60,600,000 which included equity-settled share option
expenses of HK$16,300,000, HK$200,000 and HK$44,100,000 for share
options granted to certain directors, employee and management personnel
of service providers of the Group, respectively.

The net reversal of equity-settled share option arrangements for the year
ended 31 March 2016 was HK$1,579,000 for share options granted to
certain employees upon forfeiture during that year.

**% At 31 March 2017, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to
reduce its contributions to the retirement benefit schemes in future years
(2016: Nil).

Directors’ Remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
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7. BRTBIEE (F)
S BE T ARF=A=1t—BItFEZ2WEKXAREIE
T & K% $388,000/87C  th EXFTIHTEZSREE T
ANEERARFRZH -

* BE- R HE-A=-t+—HIFEREEEE
f& A 2 #8584 60,600,000 7T * BIERTE TFTASE
RSB E TES EEREEEABZEREZ
fRiERE 2 BERERZ S 5 416,300,000 7T
200,0007% 7T K 44,100,000 7T ©

BE_ZT-ANFZA=T—HLFE #FRRKE
BTETREZEREZ RIEAT 2 BRELH 2 &
518843 1,579,000/ 7T °

ok WZE—F=RA=+—B FEELERKATAIE
WA RRERRARBNGEIFERZ R (=T —REF
) -

8. EEM=
RIE LA FAD R EHIE383(1)E) - () O K
D IFRAR AR (REBEFF2 AR ROIE 2 BREZ

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of FASEMENOT :
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2017 = —tF 2016 ZZF— "4
HK$'000 F & 7t HK$'000 T 7T
Fees e 600 1,012
Other emoluments of executive directors:  #77E =7 EMhE< :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e SRR EYEH 999 3,078
Equity-settled share option arrangements, 458 2 BERREZ B © F 58
net 16,300 40
Pension scheme contributions IRIRET B R 31 89
17,330 3,207
17,930 4,219

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, certain directors
were granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option schemes of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amounts recognised in the statement of profit
or loss for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 were included
in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

HE_T+tFER-T—"F=-A=+—HILFE "
RBEARBBERETE ETESHESHASEN
BR7% MR BRI - — P F BRI B RRM =
29 - ZEEBENFBHARNEBERER  HAFE
TRBELBBEEE  MRABE_T—+tFR=F
—RNF=ZA=T—HIFEEERAER ZEFEE
AEXZESMEEBEERA -
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8. EEME (&)
(@) BAFHTES
NERE [T BIFNTEFZ0EMT -

8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows:

2017 =2 —tF 2016 —F—/XF
HK$’000 F & 7T HK$'000 F/& 7T
Mr. Li Chi Ming FEREER=ZZ—AF
(resigned on 9 September 2015) NANBEFE) - 142
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BEAREE 150 150
Mr. Chen Youchun BRRBELE 240 240
Mr. Frank H. Miu BHEEER_F—RF
(resigned on 1 July 2016) +A—BEfE) 60 240
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki BOKMEEE (RZZE—RF
(resigned on 1 July 2016) +A—HEF) 60 240
Mr. Mai Qijian BHEEE (RZE—RF
(appointed on 22 June 2016) NAZT-—BERMT) 90 -
600 1,012

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2016: Nil).

T—RF )
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Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. E=M<e (&)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Equity-
Salaries,  settled share
allowances option Pension
and benefits ~ arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net  contributions  remuneration
RELEZ
¥e 2N BREZH BiR
ik RENEHN R AR Wesm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TR
2017 —g-tf&
Mr. Wang Haixiong THEEE(RZ2—F
(resigned on 20 July 2016) +E-+a8E) - 290 - - 290
Mr. Wei Zhenyu (*Mr. Wei") ERTAE(ZRED
(resigned on 2 December 2016) (R=B-RE+- A= BB - - - - -
Mr. Li Yunfeng FEREA(RZE—F
(resigned on 19 April 2016) m A+ B EE) - - - - -
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHAE(R-Z—RE
(appointed on 22 June 2016) ANAZT-BEZRE) - 90 8,150 - 8,240
Ms. Lam Hay Yin HEfLL (RCE—RF
(@ppointed on 20 July 2016) YE-+REZL) - 419 - 21 440
Mr. Chen Xiaodong BERLE(N-_Z—AE
(appointed on 2 December 2016) +-B-RERM) - 200 8,150 10 8,360
- 999 16,300 3 17,330
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. EXEM<E (&)
(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) HITE=E(E)
Equity-
Salaries, settled share
allowances option Pension
and benefits  arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net  contributions  remuneration
REEE 2
B 2h  RRERE IR
#e  REWET ik HEL Mo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL THL TEL TAL TAL
2016 ERRE
Mr. Wong Howard EREE(R=E—1%F
(resigned on 1 August 2015) J\A—B#ft) = 600 25 30 655
Mr. Wong Yat Fai THREEE(R-Z-1F
(resigned on 1 August 2015) NA—BEE) = 480 15 24 519
Ms. Davis Angela Hendricks Davis Angela Hendricks 2+
(appointed on 1 September 2014and (W =E—MEAA—HEZRT -
resigned on 15 May 2015) ERZZ-AERATHRET) = 219 = 11 230
Dr. Kwong Kai Sing, Benny BRNET (R=F-mE
(appointed on 1 September 2014 and 1A —REE( -
resigned on 20 April 2015) ER-T-AFMA=THE) = 200 = 10 210
Ms. Chen Wei (appointed on BREL T (R=2-MmF
8 December 2014 and +=ANBEZE
resigned on 1 August 2015) ER=Z-1%F/\A—BE) = 20 = 14 286
Mr. Zhan Jianzhou (appointed on ERBEEE(RZZ-—mE
17 December 2014 and TZATHREERE
resigned on 1 August 2015) BR=Z-REN\A—BRFT) - 200 - - 200
Mr. He Xuan (appointed on Mg (M= —1%E
1 August 2015 and resigned on NA—BEZE
29 February 2016) ER-E—RE-A-tARBE) = 150 = = 150
Mr. Wang Haixiong THEEE(RZZ-1%
(appointed on 23 Apri 2015) MA=+=REZEH) = 957 = - 957
Mr. Wei (appointed on 18 August 2015) E%&4 (R=E—1%F
NE+/REZR) = = - - -

Mr. Li Yao (appointed on 1 August 2015 Z@%4 (R-Z—H%F
and resigned on 30 December 2015)  \F—BEZ(T -
ERZZ-RFT-A=THEHE) = - - - -

Ms. Zhang Yiwen (appointed on KXt (R=Z-1F
18 August 2015 and resigned on NATNBEZE
30 December 2015) ER-Z-RFT-A=TARE) = - - - -
Mr. Li Yunfeng (appointed on FRESEE (RZT—1F
30 December 2015 and T-A=THEZE:
resigned on 19 April 2016) ER=Z-~EMATNAEE) = S - - -
- 3,078 40 89 3,207
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or REANBES EREXRERETANE 2%
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2016: Nil). (= —RF  8) -
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Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2016:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
three (2016: two) highest paid employees who are not a director of
the Company are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2017 =ZE—tF=A=+—H

IfuREHHES
ENTRBBHIERQEME (S A% : =4)
£ HEIMORBRN LXK FRBT=
£(ZF—A%: MB)HARAEE 2 BEFHES
ZHERBEDT -

2017 =Z—t % 2016 =& — R4

HK$'000 & 7T HK$'000 T8 7T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NREWER 3,198 2,223
Equity-settled share option IRrEAEE 2 B IR R - R 5

arrangements, net 200 20

Pension scheme contributions RIRET B R 160 11

3,558 2,354

During the year ended 31 March 2017, share options were granted
to one non-director highest paid employee (2016: Nil) in respect of
his service to the Group under the share option schemes of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined at the date of grant and the amounts recognised in
the statement of profit or loss for the years ended 31 March 2017
and 2016 were included in the above non-director highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

BE-ZTtF=A=+—"RHLFE BEALFE
Wit E - —R(CT—RF B FEF 2K H
RERENAEEOREMERERE £ FFE
BN IS WRITE 29 - REBREN G B BANEE
KRR EATFEDRELARREE - INBE=
T+ ER"E-RNFZA=+BLFERERA

RLBEEHALXZFEEZREFMRE ZH
BB EE &R A
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees (continued) 9. EfumSHFMES (&)
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose MeNFTIBEZIIEFT 2T HES AN
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: T

Number of employees /& & A &
2017 =F—tF 2016 —F— R4

HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000% JT £ 1,000,000 7% 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7L £ 1,500,000 /8 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7L £ 2,000,000 /8 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T % 2,500,000 7T 1 =
3 2
A
10. Income Tax Expense 10. FRSBIBEX
2017 =2— & 2016 = — /"4
HK$°000 & 7t HK$'000 T/ 7T
Current — Hong Kong BE — &FF
Underprovision in prior years BAEFERETR - 1
Total tax charge for the year NEEFIBEFBLEE - 1
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BEBNEHR —EERANEERBELE 2 M ERTRE
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong MIE16.5% (ZF—7NE : 16.5%) i RHE - FEE
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China BB A ERFR SN 2 REERIERTAN - HE
in the prior year had been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in M REREN  BAEBLEREN BRI
Mainland China in which the Group operated, based on existing THERAE -

legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
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10. Income Tax Expense (continued) 10. FRrEHiRX ()
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to loss before ERARRD T REAKIGHE R R TERN a AR 2 A
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the EMEAE BB ATERERAZRERS (ER)
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax IR BB RS 2 BB IE R YR T ¢

position at the effective tax rates is as follows:

2017 —EB—+tF

Mainland China

Hong Kong & i Bl A it Total # 5t
HK$’000 T & T HK$°000 T % 7T HK$°000 T & 7T
Loss before tax MR F A E I (137,865) (18,532) (156,397)
Tax at the applicable tax rates #EBH KitH 2 7B (22,748) (4,633) (27,381)
Income not subject to tax RATIA (75,882) (2) (75,884)
Expenses not deductible for tax A~ A] #0754 5 52 91,753 4,635 96,388
Tax losses not recognised AERTIAEE 6,877 - 6,877
Tax Ti1E - - -
2016 —BAEF
Mainland China
Hong Kong &8 FR [ A3, Total &5t
HK$'000 F7& 7T HK$'000 47T HK$'000 F/# 7T
Profit/(loss) before tax MR A=A (E1E) (1,215,918) 1,174 (1,214,744)
Tax at the applicable tax rates #%25@ B H Rt 2 K18 (200,627) 293 (200,334)
Adjustments in respect of B HAR BN AR 1R
current tax of previous 2
periods 1 — 1
Income not subject to tax BT A (763) - (763)
Expenses not deductible for tax /~A] #1775 52 130,587 1,197 131,784
Tax losses utilised from FRBEA AR 2
previous periods T8 EE (18,710) (1,787) (20,497)
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIEEE 89,513 297 89,810
Tax B 1 - 1
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1.

12.

Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale

On 30 March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with China Culture Silicon Valley Limited, a related
company wholly owned by the father of Mr. Wei, the Company’s
substantial shareholder, former executive director and Chairman,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to dispose of its entire equity
interest in the PLD Group and a shareholder loan due by the PLD
Group to the Group of approximately HK$78 million for a total cash
consideration of US$11.3 million (approximately HK$87.7 million),
subject to the completion of certain conditions. The PLD Group is set
up for the construction of submarine cable system business but has
not yet commenced operation. The disposal of PLD Group was
completed on 13 May 2016. Further details are included in note 30
to the financial statements.

The major classes of assets held for sale by the Group are as follows:

1. 7 EAEBEHECLERE

REZT—A"F=A=1+H AEEEPEERE
BARI(ARREERE  AIRTESHREIRELLE
ZRECEHAZBERT) I EE R - Bt
AEERBEHEHENPIDERZ 2525 R PLDEE
RENER 2 IREE 478,000,000/ 7T #IFEHR
{87 11,300,000 37T (487,700,000 7)) © BAFET
EHTEREBFEEE - PDEEAZESRLERR
My - ERARFAEE - HEPDEER=-ZF—
FRAAT=BFK - E—TFHFBHRP B RERN T
30 -

AEERKEHNECEECTERANWT ¢

31 March 2016

—E—RF
=A=+—8H
HK$'000 T8 7T

Assets BE
Cash and bank balances B4 RIBITET 49
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TETERIE - e R H b E R IE 77,580
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale SEABELEZHEEBR Y BE 77,629

Loss per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent of
HK$156,397,000 (2016: HK$1,252,637,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue of 8,958,428,816 (2016:
6,879,738,331). The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares
in issue used in the basic and diluted loss per share calculation for
the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 have been adjusted for
the bonus warrants issue in the current year and prior year (note 26),
respectively.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 as no
dilutive events existed because the exercise of warrants and share
options outstanding during those years had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share amounts presented.

12. BAREBREERAARGESRE

B
BREABESEDRBET R EES ABEAFEEE
18156,397,0007% 70 ( =& — /< & : 1,252,637,000 7%
TL) R B BT E AR 2 N T 5 £08,958,428,816 4% (=
T— N :6,879,738331 ) st E - HE-T—tF
kT AFZA=t+—HUEFERRFEERER
RE#EEER BT BRINETEIEE SR E R
FE R EEFE ARG R B TRIAEE (i5E26) 1F
AR o

HREEZE—Z—+tFRE_ZT—A"F=ZA=1+—HLHF
[E I £ R TE M AR T8 RARAE E BB AR T F s
i MU ERZSEFRNMEY 2 SRELAEIESE
EH AR MzERREBRBERELMZ7GRE
ABGESBAREELE -
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B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 =ZE—tF=A=+—H

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. ¥  BERRKE

Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
HEWME RE R
%=1 HERRE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET
31 March 2017 —E—t+tH#=H=+—H
At 1 April 2016: RZZT—R"FEMA—H :
Cost AN 3,627 2,243 5,870
Accumulated depreciation Bt e (612) (2,042) (2,654)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,015 201 3,216
At 1 April 2016, net of RZZFE—R"FMHA—H -
accumulated depreciation Nk RHrER 3,015 201 3,216
Additions INE 3,462 18 3,480
Wirite-off i sH (3.015) - (3,015)
Depreciation provided FRITERE
during the year - (50) (50)
At 31 March 2017, net of R-ZE—+F=A=1+—H"
accumulated depreciation M2 ER 3,462 169 3,631
At 31 March 2017: RZE—+E=A=+—H:
Cost B 4,074 1,854 5,928
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (612) (1,685) (2,297)
Net carrying amount BRE A 3,462 169 3,631
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31 March2017 =Z—tF=A=+—H

13. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 13. Y% - BERKE (&)

Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
HEWZE VI R
= KEREE HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAxT FAT
31 March 2016 ZE-RF=A=1T—H
At 1 April 2015: RZZE—RFMA—A :
Cost AR 1,018 5,624 6,642
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (1,018) (3,489) (4,507)
Net carrying amount AR FHE - 2,135 2,135
At 1 April 2015, net of RZE—RAFMA—H -
accumulated depreciation k2T ER - 2,135 2,135
Additions NE 3,015 214 3,229
Impairment RIE = 3) 3)
Write-off i 8 = (3) (3)
Disposal & - (1,195) (1,195)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE BT E A 7
(note 30) (Fft5E30) - (482) (482)
Exchange realignment P b FA = - (31) (31)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year - (434) (434)
At 31 March 2016, net of RZE—ARF=A=+—H"
Accumulated depreciation Nk R ER 3,015 201 3,216
At 31 March 2016: RZZE—RF=A=1+—H:
Cost BN 3,627 2,243 5,870
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (612) (2,042) (2,654)
Net carrying amount BREFHE 3,015 201 3,216
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14. Available-For-Sale Equity Investments

15.

Notes to Financial Statements

BATEERAR MY RE

31 March 2017 =ZE—tF=A=+—H

14. TTHEBERKRKRE

2017 =Z2—+t%F 2016 =T — <4
HK$'000 F & 7t HK$'000 F 77T
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRAKRE  BRAFEE 1,121,372 655,121

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities
which were designated as available-for-sale financial assets and have
no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there was a significant
decline in the market value of certain listed equity investments. The
directors consider that such a decline indicates that the listed equity
investments have been impaired and an impairment loss of
HK$3,947,000 (2016: HK$669,615,000) has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss for the year.

Equity Investments at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss

15.

LB R IEE BRI E S R AE B I & B E 2
HRSRBZBAERREARK

BE-_ZT—+tHF=-A=+—HILFE FTLEWER
BEZHEAB TG EFRAME NKBETR LR
G E B IRE - MR EE1E 3,947,000 8T (ZF — /X
F 669,615,000/ 70) BN AFERIB= R ANHER

ERE/BAFEIRZRERE

B

2017 =Z—t 5 2016 = — R4
HK$'000 & 7T HK$'000 T8 7T

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, & FHIRARE -
at fair value AT E 49,500 173,177

The above equity investments at 31 March 2017 and 2016 were
classified as held for trading. The fair values of listed equity
investments are based on quoted market prices.

The market value of the Group’s equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately HK$63,750,000 (2016:
HK$163,797,000).

ERBEARER T —tFR T RF=[=1—
ROBERFEREMSE - LMBRAREZ AFETIR
BTG REE -

BiRIBSE AT EY R 2 NEERANEERAIEZS
BIi5sREk 2 B 2 T{EL A63,750,0008 T (=T —7x
£ 163,797,000 7T) °
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31 March2017 =Z—tF=A=+—H

16.

17.

Loans Receivable

16.

W E K

2017 =8 —+F 2016 —Z— /N4
HK$’000 F3%& T HK$'000 T 7T
Loans receivable R E R 180,656 =

As at 31 March 2017, loans receivable represented loans of
HK$180,656,000 granted by the Group to a number of independent
third parties. The loans bore interest at rates ranging from 5% to
10% per annum and were repayable within one year. The grants of
these loans were approved and monitored by the Group's
management. The loan balances were neither past due nor impaired
for which there was no recent history of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement
over its loan receivable balances. The carrying amount of the loans
receivable approximates their fair value.

R-ZE—tHF=A=1+—0 BREFIELALEERT
% 238 % = 75 B 38 180,656,000 7 7T ° B ZIR F F
E5%ZE10% T BRER—FREE - BEZFER
HAAEEEEEHERER o BRI B0
1B - IHA R 8% -

AR SR B30 S L R S SR A AR R A R A IR S LA
ERRTHEN - B ER 2 REEEE A FERE -

Trade Receivables 17. BEWE SR
2017 =Z—t#F 2016 = — /"4
HK$'000 Tt HK$'000 F7&7T
Trade receivables FEU SR 5 BE = 1,175 =
Impairment RE (1,175) =

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one to two months. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
regularly reviewed by senior management. As at 31 March 2017,
there was a significant concentration of credit risk as 100% of the
balances represented receivables from one major customer within
the electronic and accessory products segment. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancement over its trade receivable balances. The
carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values.

AEBERTFIIY 2 R Z R EE AR A
7 ENEPRBEEREENKIEA - EEH—RR—
EMEAR - BEEPHARSEERE - AEEEH R
BEEYGIRER B2 EERES - MAREHRES
REBAEBFERES RT—LF=A=+—8 "
HR100% EHRAEFREEERSBEA-—BIER
Pz RYWERE Mt FEEAETEERR - BIKE
SRR B o AKEL Ml E RN E 5 IR G RS
BEAERRREHEMEREREER - BKRE Sk
R REEEEATERS
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31 March 2017 —ZE—+F=A=+—H

17. Trade Receivables (continued) 17. BIRE 5 R (&)
The movement in provision for impairment of trade receivables is as EUE SERF 2 REREES T ¢
follows:
2017 =Z—tF 2016 ZZ—R4F
HK$'000 F & T HK$'000 F7# 7T
At 1 April REA—H - 154
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BERRBEEE (FiE7) 1,175 -
Amount written off as uncollectible SREEUR 14 35 & 58 - (154)
1,175 =
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables i EWE 5 RFOBERE B EERNRERKE Z
is a provision of HK$1,175,000 (2016: Nil) for individually impaired 2 EEEN1750008 T(ZT—RF: T) ZER
trade receivables with a carrying amount before provision of B IR BBRIBREEA1,175,0008 L (ZF—X
HK$1,175,000 (2016: Nil). F:E)o
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that ERRERKE ZREFEFEFZ TS IRMAFE
were in dispute or were in default in interest and/or principal K/ BARE 2 EEHR - TERE AT Y0 50 FEUGRIA
payments and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.
18. Loan to a Director 18. I—BESBEN
Loan to a director, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the BIEEB R TEGE3IBNAIEERAT (HEEET
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies BHER)ROIEIHAERE M —BEEEHRHTIA
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is T~
as follows:
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 March amount
At outstanding 2016 and outstanding At
31 March  during the 1 April  during the 1 April
2017 year 2016 year 2015
»
—E-RE
S =A=+—H i
—E—tF FRRE R=F—~F FARE =ZT—AfF
=ZA=+—H KREERH MAE—H REEREHE mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK’000
FHT FHTT FrET FrET FET
Name of director: EEMA
Chen Xiaodong 5k FEE B 31,900 31,900 - - -

The loan to a director is unsecured, bears interest at 5% per annum
and has nine months’ terms of repayment. The loan was fully settled
in May 2017.

The carrying amount of the loan approximates to its fair value.

RA—R2EBZERAERR  R5%FMEFE - LHE
BNEAESRS EFRER-_Z—LFHAES -

B REEEE R FERS
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19.

20.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables

19.

BANRE  RERHEMERFIE

2017 =Z—tF 2016 ZZF— " 4F

HK$’000 F 7 7T HK$'000 F7& 7T

Prepayments and other receivables 8 < 2 A % £ e U s 4,521 25,491
Deposits paid BEfNES 28,826 4,443
33,347 29,934
Less: Non-current portion & IERBNENM A (27,947) (4,417)
Current portion TR E B D 5,400 25,517

None of the prepayments and deposits is either past due or
impaired.

As at 31 March 2017, included in deposits paid was a deposit of
HK$22,000,000 in relation to the Group’s acquisition of 100%
equity interest in a company. The acquisition was subsequently
completed in May 2017. Further details are set out in note 37(c) to
the financial statements.

The remaining balance of other receivables was neither past due nor
impaired and relates to a number of independent parties for whom
there was no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables approximate
their fair values.

Cash and Bank Balances

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$91,000
(2016: HK$5,030,000). The RMB are not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
restricted bank balances and cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

20.

BEENFE R RS AR ERE °

RZZE—tHF=A=+—H ENREBEAHLE
B i — R A R AT A # 5 2 12 22,000,000/8 7T °
FWBERER —ZE—tFRAATK - £—FHIEH
R IRRMFE37(0) °

Hib UGB 2 T BRI IsRE - ARZ R0
M RS B R TR

Be R EMmEKFIRNREESEL A FERSE °

ReERBITERE

RREHR - AEEUARE ([AREDFHEZHS
K ERIT#1F /91,0008 7T (ZZ — 754 : 5,030,000
) e ARSI R LBRARMER - A - BRI
R B it 2 SNGE B IR AR R AETE - TR R EEER
T ANEEEETSABREREITINERE 2 RIT
AR R AH AT -

FRIBITHIRSRIBE B RITF R EZZE R R
HHE - RITREFFRITEIHENCSRAAFEL
RIT - RRFBITEFUARRE RBITHEFOKREE
EENFERS -
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21.

22,

23.

Trade Payables
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

21

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 =ZE—tF=A=+—H

FE B 2R
RIREHIR - AEBRENZ S RFIZEZE R 2 R
DITET -

2017 =F—tF 2016 ZZE—"F

HK$'000 T3& T HK$'000 77T

3 months to 1 year =EAZE—%F 499 -
Over 1 year —FLAE 3 3
502 3

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have a credit period of
an average of two months. The carrying amounts of trade payables
approximate their fair values.

Other Payables and Accruals

As at 31 March 2016, included in other payables and accruals of the
Group was receipt in advance of HK$31,013,000 for the exercise of
the Company’s bonus warrants during the year. The advance was
fully utilised during the year (note 28(a)).

The Group’s payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within three months.

Shareholder Loan

The shareholder loan was unsecured, non-interest-bearing and had
no specific terms of repayment. The carrying amount of the
shareholder loan approximates its fair value.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the loan has been fully
settled.

22,

23.

ENEZERS T ERFHEEREMEA B
BHRA 2 REERLATERE

HttENRERETER
RoZ—AF=A=+—0  AREZLHETREA
BB B B BE A BT AR AU RIS 2 7
WEIE 31,013,003 © B BEREEE R B
B (W3 28(a)) °

KRB Z RN FEREFBERR T ER—RER=
18 A RESR -

BRERE K
BERERABFEN L8 RALMTTERDR - B
SE3 2 AR (E B A TS ©

BE-T-—tF=A=t—HLFE ABRREH
& -
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24. Notes Payable

25.

26.

24,

BN RE

2017 =8 —+F 2016 —Z— /N4
HK$°000 T3 7T HK$'000 T8 7T
Notes payable JEANE 86,574 =

During the year, the Group issued notes (the “2016 Notes”) with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$92,100,000, before related
expenses of HK$5,526,000, to an independent individual. The 2016
Notes bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum and will mature in
January 2024. The interest will be repayable by the Group annually
on the anniversary of the issue date of the respective notes and up
to the maturity date.

Deferred Tax

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$1,359,535,000
(2016: HK$1,317,707,000) and in Mainland China of Nil (2016:
HK$1,187,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

25.

AEERAFER—BBIALETER( =T —X
FERE]) - MF 5,526,000 T HEARZ A2 A& 42
%8/592,100,0008 7T - ZE— ANFEEIRFFNEA%
TR WRZZE-—MFE— AR - AEEAEETHE
AIEFFAEBRIEETEZ BT AEERS -

IEFE R IH
REBMBEEREBE £ 2 FIEEE 1,359,535,000 7
TT(=Z—754% 1 1,317,707,00058 7T ) & 7R B (A i
EEZHEBEBRZTBIL(-ZT—73F 1,187,000/
70) - AR IR B IR 2 R R 2 R R ER B R A
HRK B A RFEELEEBHRB T KA A ER
Fim A AT AR R SH AR TE B 18 - I Bt E SR R
RIELERIBEE -

Share Capital 26. R
Shares B £
2017 =2 —tF 2016 —ZF—7R4F
HK$'000 F & T HK$'000 F7& 7T
Authorised: JETE
80,000,000,000 (2016: 80,000,000,000)  80,000,000,000 & (== — 754 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 80,000,000,000 %)
BARTEE 0.01 87T 2 F ik 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREUE -
8,965,128,980 (2016: 8,500,360,724) 8,965,128,980 ik (=& — 754 -
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 8,500,360,724 %)
BAREMEO0.01 Bz Eimk 89,651 85,004
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26. Share Capital (continued)

A summary of movements of the Company’s issued shares capital

and share premium account is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

BATEERAR MY RE

31 March 2017 =ZE—tF=A=+—H

26. B4 (48)
EBRARRRBEBITRARKRMDREREHPZNOT -

Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BRITRGEE BRITRA R E R @it
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FHT FHT THT
At 1 April 2015 R=ZF—AFMA—H 4,190,796,225 41,908 3,060,703 3,102,611
Placing of new shares, TR E AR
net of expenses (kA E) (i) 4,000,000,000 40,000 958,285 998,285
Bonus warrants exercised BT AT = (ii) 309,564,499 3,096 24,876 27,972
At 31 March 2016 and RZE—RE
1 April 2016 =A=t+—HkK
—T—~FMA—A 8,500,360,724 85,004 4,043,864 4,128,868
Bonus warrants exercised EITHEALRRARAE (ii) 464,768,256 4,647 26,957 31,604
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F
=A=t—"H 8,965,128,980 89,651 4,070,821 4,160,472

Notes:

(ii)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, an aggregate of 4,000,000,000
new shares were placed to Mr. Wei at the subscription price of HK$0.25
per share with total gross proceeds of HK$1,000,000,000 and the related
issue expense was HK$1,715,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the subscription rights attaching to
309,564,499 bonus warrants were exercised at subscription prices ranging
from HK$0.068 to HK$0.1 per share, resulting in the issue of 309,564,499
ordinary shares for proceeds of HK$27,972,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the subscription rights attaching to
464,768,256 bonus warrants were exercised at a subscription price of
HK$0.068, resulting in the issue of 464,768,256 ordinary shares for
proceeds of HK$31,604,000.

(ii)

BE-_T—X"F==A=+—HILFE ' ARFAEL
£ REESR0.257% T Bt & & $£4,000,000,000 A%
XD - FrSRUB4R%8 41,000,000,000 74 7T X AERE 3%
1TF% /1,715,0008 7T °

HE-T—R"F=R=+—HIEFE 309,564,499
14T T 3R B 4 75 BT B 75 7R BB M 1R vR BB (B = % 0.068 75
JLEO.1 S LTS BB E17309,564,499 A% I i@
% - FT{S3IE A 27,972,000 7T

HEZZT—tF=A=1+—"HILFE ' 464,768,256
19 KL F) SR AR A 5 FIT B A5 SR RE A 1R SR B (B 0.068 7 T &
171 - BE3E1T 464,768,256 I ERAL - FTISRIAA
31,604,0008 7T
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26.

27.

Share Capital (continued)

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share
options issued under the schemes are included in note 29 to the
financial statements.

Warrants

During the year ended 31 March 2017, approximately 464,768,256
shares were issued as a result of the exercise of approximately
464,768,256 units of warrants by warrantholders. The net proceeds
from the exercise of warrants were approximately HK$31,604,000.
The remaining 4,298,676 warrants expired on 7 April 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, approximately 309,564,499
shares were issued as a result of the exercise of approximately
309,564,499 units of warrants by warrantholders. The net proceeds
from the exercise of warrants were approximately HK$27,972,000.
As at 31 March 2016, 469,066,932 warrants were outstanding.

Reserves

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the Group
reorganisation upon listing of the Company’s shares in 1994, and
represented the difference between the nominal value of the shares
of the former holding company of the Group prior to the Group
reorganisation and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, pursuant to special and ordinary resolutions passed at
the special general meeting held on 22 September 2000, the issued
and fully paid share capital of the Company was reduced by
HK$448,992,000 through a reduction in the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company. The credit so arising was transferred
to the contributed surplus.

26.

27.

B (&)

BE

AT 2 BB B BRI 81517 2 R 2 ¢
RN TRRNIRE29 -

AR REE

BHE-Z—+tF=A=+—HILFE  BARRBRES
BB AT #)464,768,256 17 ;AR AEE + FHILE 89T
#7464,768,256 B BX 19 © 1TE RAXAEF FT1S 5K IB F 58
49 %31,604,00078 7T © # T~ 4,298,676 17 R I 4E &
R-Z—XNEMALAER °

BHE-Z—XF=A=+—HIEFE  BARRBRES
BB ATT{E#)309,564,499 17 :RRRAEE + FILE 89T
#7309,564,499 B A& 17 - 1T{E RAXAE B FT1S 3K IB F 58
#9%427,972,0008 0 c R=E—A~"FE=A=1+—8 -
469,066,932 7 FRAXIEE H AR THE ©

(A

AEE 2 EHBHRE AR RRMON - AAEE LT
RIPTET 2 REEA - B ESARARE 2B
ARRHEAEBREAR RRBZEROMEITRNDZ
BB 2 2058 -

AN BBER =TT FNA B BT ZREE
ARG EFABZERIREEREAR  AARIZEE
1T R SR B A3 B EIR AN A R IR AN 2 T & M Al
448,992,000767T - AL EA 2 EREREEHRR o
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27. Reserves (continued)

On 28 July 2005, a capital reorganisation scheme was approved by
the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant to which, every
10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of the
Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.10
and every issued consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount
by cancelling HK$0.09 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation) one
reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was transferred
to the contributed surplus.

On 26 March 2013, a capital reorganisation scheme was approved
by the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant to which,
every 5 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of the
Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.05
and every issued consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount
by cancelling HK$0.04 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation) one
reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was transferred
to the contributed surplus.

On 27 February 2015, a capital reorganisation was approved by the
shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant to which, every 10
shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of the Company
were consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every
issued consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.09 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation) one
reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was transferred
to the contributed surplus.

The equity component of convertible bonds arose from the
convertible bonds with the maturity date of 15 November 2010
issued by the Company in 2007, which had been fully redeemed by
the Company upon maturity.

27.
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e (&)
R-ZEZTRFLA=-+N\A BAEMAFERIE—E
FralREREAERE - B NARBBITRAF
F10RBREMEN BTZRHEHA—IREAEO.10
BILZ AN  MEBREERTEHROZEEBSB
FEIHR D EBITAGHIR1D 0.0978 TT 2 BUR B AN T LA K
B BRI EEE (RIR D& 0H&) —BREE0.01 BT 2 &
BHERD - AEEAZEREREEERL -

R-T—=F=A=1+, 8 BEAEHEAZRE—E
FrRRZERERERE - B - AARBBRITRAF
B5REREEO.01 BT RN E #f A/ —RE(E0.05
BLZEHRD  MEBREZTEHROZAESH
BT BITA RN 0.0478 T 2 BUR BT LAH
B BRI EEAE (RIR(D & 0H&) —IREE0.01 BT 2 &
BHERD - AtEAZ ERESREEERL -

R-ZE—A&E-A-++tA BAEMAFERE—F
AR R AL - Bt - AR RIBBEITRAF
F10RBREE.O B2 KHEHA—REEO.10
B2 ARG  MERCETAHRO ZEAEES
BB ERITA RN 0.0978 T 2 B A T LAH
B BULELE (RO AHHE) —REE0.01 B T2 &
BHARD - At EAZERESREEERL -

BRI 388 e {5 T 2 A 2 TR R B 55 A) 2 i s BB A TR
“ERLFHARAET HIMAR T -FF
T—A+hA  ARFEERIHAREHECERHE AR
&S o
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28. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows
Major non-cash transactions

(a

122 China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIEHE HNFKEBER A T

During the year ended 31 March 2017, an aggregate of
464,768,256 bonus warrants were exercised at the exercise
price of HK$0.068 per share with total proceeds of
HK$31,604,000. HK$31,013,000 out of the total proceeds
was received in advance in the year ended 31 March 2016
and included in other payables and accruals as at 31 March
2016. This item has no cash flow impact during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded
other payables in relation to additions of property, plant and
equipment of HK$3,462,000. The additions have had no cash
flow impact during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, commission of
HK$5,526,000 in relation to the placing of notes remained
unpaid, and the balance was included in other payables and
accruals as at 31 March 2017. This item has no cash flow
impact during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group disposed of
items of property, plant and equipment for a consideration in
aggregate of HK$8,973,000. HK$2,393,000 out of the total
consideration received in advance in the year ended 31 March
2015 and included in other payables and accruals as at 31
March 2016, was utilised as part of the consideration during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

28. MEBHEHRERM:TE
BAKBELRS

(a)

HE-Z—+tF=A=+—BHILtFE &H#
464,768,256 10 AL FI R R EF R ITFEE TR
0.068 B L IETTfF + FTISFNIEAREE 431,604,000
TT © FTSSIA AR E F 31,013,0008 7T &L
E_T-—RNE=ZA=+—HLEEEHEXEK
B YR —ZE—ANFE=ZA=+—Ht A\EME
NREBEREFER FAEHEEETEHRS

== By 480
MEEEFE -

HE_ZT—+tF=-A=+—HLEFE X£H
BEEHEAEYE  BRE KRB HMEMNK
JH#)3,462,00087 - BAABEWEER S RE
EETE-

BE-Z+F=A=1+—HIFE F@AKR
BRIE 2B+ 5,526,000 B TTINANESA - B
MEHR — T —tF=A=+—Hit AHME
NHREBEREFER - FREBLEARSRE
EERE -

BHE-_Z—XRNFZA=+—ALEE A&/
LA#B X (B 8,973,000 B L E W « /E KL
BH - AREES239300FTREE -Z
—AF=A=F+—HLEFEEELEKR TR
—E-ANFZ A=+ A AHEMENRER
EAERA - BRAREREE=_Z—<F=A
=+ BIEEEEREBHRE -



29. Share Option Schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the share option schemes include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group or any invested entity, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group or any invested entity, customers of the Group
or any invested entity, shareholders of the Group or any invested
entity, holders of securities of the Group or any invested entity and
persons or entities that provide research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any invested entity. A share
option scheme became effective on 27 August 2003 and expired on
26 August 2013 (the “2003 Scheme”). A new share option scheme
was adopted and became effective on 27 September 2013 (the
“2013 Scheme"”). Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2013
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the effective date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted under the 2003 Scheme
and the 2013 Scheme (collectively, the “Share Option Schemes”) is
an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the dates of approval of the Share Option Schemes unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The maximum number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted
to each eligible participant in the Share Option Schemes (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

29.
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iR ST

AARRY ERET S EESBREEHAEEE
EEBEEFGMAERMZ G ERSHE - BRETEE
B ELEEREARRES (BIEBYIENTE
H) AEBERETMAREARIZEMES - A5EH
HEMEE QR 2 EMBRGERER - NEEKT
MR ERRIZER « REBEREMATIRE AR ZK
B AEES IR ERARZESEE AR ANE
B sk E M ATIE A A RITR AL 28 s = h BT S 1% 2 (]
ATHEAR —HEREFER=_ZZ=F/\A
—tHtERARYR =T —=FNA=F+BEH(=
TE=F51El]) - —TEHMEREFER=TE—=FA
AZ++BERMTER( =T —=F8l1) - BR3E
PITECYSE TN - — T — =F st 28I £ B He
ST ERE

RE—TE=F B R T —=F: &8 (GHER [%F
BRERE )  RITEMADRERERE 2Bk
B - AT Z AR BB RS HE % AR
ZIRHARRRE BTN Z 10%  BRIFEARD AR
HEEFH10% 2 EIR - REF+—EAHE - BE%SF
BRI EI R A B R BETRER T 2B
TRBETZEOBE (BEETE  EEHEER
I 2 B NMSBBARBEBRITRNZ 1% ° &
— SR TEBHIREZ BRERARRERRAE &
HEE
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29. Share Option Schemes (continued)

Under the Share Option Schemes, share options granted to a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any grant of
share options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 is subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Schemes may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determined by the directors, save that such period shall not be more
than 10 years from the dates of adoption of the Share Option
Schemes subject to the provisions for early termination set out in the
Share Option Schemes. Unless otherwise determined by the directors
at their sole discretion, there is no requirement of a minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the Share Option
Schemes is determined by the directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer.

29.

IBIRREST 8 ()

ZEBEIRERTEEE  MSES  ARRTTHRARK
FTERRIFES 2 AMBHBATR FERERS LR
BB IERTESRME - 1IN MERTFARREE
BRRSBIERTEETIHEES A2 EMBREALTZ
BREBHARRBEETRG 2 0.1% REE (RIEE
IR S B AR AR U Th (B 5T 8 ) #8481 5,000,000
BT WSS BN TEMA B R L RiGE L 2 Bk
(RIEEITHE - Bt R MARTTE Z B RN+ =
A HE (RIEZF L E B) RZA T 81T B EITR
5 - BJEESERREARE LSRR ALE -

RIBZEERAEE - BRI AR ABRBRER
H AR — AR PRRE RS ENER 2 BARE -
WANE RS KM 1B T 2 RBAKE - B
ZITERHESRE - ERBEENZEEEETE 2
TR PRI E AT NS EBE SR AN % 5 AT 3
RN H BIAEET T 5 - BRIFER A M RIZHBEH K
BHEORTE - BRI BB RN B Al 1T (R AT B+ A %
BREREHIRZIRE

REZSBRAEBRE ZBREZTEERESE
E o ENBOIRUAT=ZE2&KSE : (VAR ARMHR
X B A i B HRAE R S B 2 TR 8 ¢ (i) BE AR R
PRI R B AT 22 5 B R 32 A 2 T
B R AABRMNRELY AR ZHIE -
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29. Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, 13,821,000 share options
were forfeited and the corresponding share option reserve of
HK$32,455,000 was transferred to the accumulated losses upon
forfeiture.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 896,000,000 share options
were granted under the 2013 Scheme to eligible participants and
remained outstanding as at 31 March 2017 to subscribe for a total
of approximately 896,000,000 shares. The outstanding options
granted under the 2013 Scheme shall continue to be valid and are
subject to the provisions of the 2003 Scheme and Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

29.
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BT E (&)
BIRIEZ 55 AR S ARBRAR LT -

HEZZT—X"F=A=+—HLFE 13,821,000/
BERRAE B R U - T 4B FE B IR 4 148 85 32,455,000 8 JT IR
BRI e = Rt R 1A o

HE_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE 896,000,000
1 AR EE A ££49896,000,000 IR A% 15 2 B A% #E TY 4R
BT —=FtERTEERSHEE  GRERKRER
=A==t —HHKRTE - RBE=ZT—=F
STEIFTE I 2 MARTTEERESEBEE N WX =T
T=FEIR EMARRIE 17 EZEAER -

The following share options were outstanding during the years UNTERERBEE_ZT—tFR_ZT—X~F=HA
ended 31 March 2017 and 2016: =+ —RHIEFERARITRE
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE-Z—tH=A=+—HLEHEE
2013 Scheme —Z— =5t & 2003 Scheme —EZE =558
Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number  average exercise Number
price per share of options price per share of options
kR meE ZhRmeE
FHTEE BREHE FHTEE BREHA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T4
At 1 April REOA—H - - - .
Granted during the year FREFH 0.181 896,000 - -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 896,000 -
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29. Share Option Schemes (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

29. BBRAESHE (&)

HE_T—RF=RA=t+—HILFE

2013 Scheme = E— =2

2003 Scheme —EZ =451 2

Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number average exercise Number
price per share of options price per share of options
BRRME ShknE
FHTEE EIEHA TFaTEE BEEHA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T3 BT T4
At 1 April REUA—H 0.690 4,227 1.117 9,594
Forfeited during the year* FRBI* 0.690 (4,227) 1.117 (9,594)
At 31 March R=A=t—H = =

b During the year ended 31 March 2016, 13,821,000 share options were
forfeited upon cessation of employment of participants in accordance with
the terms of the 2003 Scheme and 2013 Scheme and HK$1,579,000 was
credited to profit or loss accordingly.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options that

* BEZZ—R"F=A=+—HILFE 13,821,000
BREBBE _-ZST=FTE8 R —=FT8EZR
FIEERA2EEZEZY - EIt1,579,0005% T E &

ABER ©

REZZE—tHF=A=+—H HARTEBREZTE

were outstanding as at 31 March 2017 are as follows: BRITEHANT :
2017 —E—tF
Number of options Exercise price per share* Exercise period
ERESR BRRATHEE FT{E 5
‘000 HK$
F1p I
896,000 0.181 20/02/2017 — 19/02/2019
T +F_A-FTBREZZE-NAF-_A+NH
896,000
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case * AR 2T ES AR - BITARSIA R FRA
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share Rz Hpn RS (L A -
capital.
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29. Share Option Schemes (continued)

The fair values of the equity-settled share options granted during the
year ended 31 March 2017 were estimated by Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuer, using the binomial option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$60,600,000. The
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$60,600,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2017. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

Share options granted 20 February 2017

Dividend yield (%) N/A
Expected volatility (%) 119.42
Historical volatility (%) 119.42
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.047
Expected life of options (year) 2
Share price at grant date (HK$ per share) 0.181

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 896,000,000
(2016: Nil) share options outstanding under the Share Option
Schemes, which represented approximately 10% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the share
options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 896,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$8,960,000 and share
premium of HK$153,216,000 (before issue expenses).

29.
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IR REST R (8)
HE-Z—+tF=-A=+—RHALFEARLBRELE
ZHEREZ2 AFERBE L BES BB GHERMTIAF
BERABRATA_EHABREEEER  ZERZLE
BRHE 2GR R NEHEETHE - BE=T—tF=A
S+t ALFEREBRELEZEREZATESR
60,600,000 L AEBEREBEE_T—LEF=H
=+ —HIEFEANERERERZ 60,600,000 8T
RS 8 A AR AL P 2 B

B ERE —ET—+%¥-HA_-+H
AR B S = (%) i A
TEFTARE K 18 (%) 119.42
JE 52 AR(B R 18 (%) 119.42
2 [ P 1) 2 (%) 1.047
TETRE AR R (4F) 2
I B HIRR(E (BT &h%) 0.181

FRET AR BN IR R R 2R R AR RBE 2 RER - 1B
ARBET—ERBEBRER -

Bz B A SR AR FEZAET

RBEEHR AAARZSEBERENETH
896,000,00017 M ARITEERE(ZT—RF : &)
HERAAREBBEITRNDN10% - HBAARE
Al 2 B NGRS - SR ETTE B8 IR 18 35 77 896,000,000
REBINA R BN E @R - WL RA RGO HE (FNRE
1TFISZ AT) 9 Bl £18,960,0005% 7T & 153,216,000 78
=
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30. Disposal of Subsidiaries

30. HEMB QT

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group disposed of (i) its
entire interest in PLD Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, to a related company wholly owned by the father of Mr.
Wei for a cash consideration of US$11.3 million (approximately
HK$87.7 million) (note 11); and (ii) its entire interest in CSPT
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, to a
related company wholly-owned by the step-mother of Mr. Wei for a
cash consideration of US$10.5 million (approximately HK$81.9
million).

HEZZ—tHF=A=+—HILFE ' A5E(RZE
EERBZERB2HRERARHERNEBEZENBER
AJPLD Holdings Limited % 2 f& # - R & K B &
11,300,000 3= 7T (%787,700,000787T) (BizE 11) & K (ii)
MELEESE2ERF ZBERARLEAEEZEK
J& 2 B] CSPT Holdings Limited & 2p i ## - e RE A
10,500,000 37t (#7 81,900,000 8 7T) °

2017 =2—t%F
HK$°000 F & 7T
Net assets disposed of: BEHEFEE
Cash and bank balances Be RRITHER 1,141
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TANFIE -~ 112e MAE MWK FIE 153,220
Other payables and accruals HEMENZKIENEER (1,163)
Net assets disposed of BEHEFEE 153,198
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve [0l & )8 =h i s 881
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz 15,566
169,645
Satisfied by: AR AR
Cash HE 169,645

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

FRALENBARZRERREFEEARAFRLZ

of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: AITEAT :
2017 =Z— %
HK$'000 F3& T
Cash consideration BeRE 169,645
Cash and bank balances disposed of B HERe RRITET (1,141)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect ERHEWNBARIZRERRE
of the disposal of subsidiaries EEEBERAFE 168,504
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30. Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued) 30. HEMBE AT (&)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group disposed of (i) its HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE  A£EE()RB
entire interest in King Place Investment Limited, a wholly-owned VEZAHEAEEZEWNBARIREFREGRAR]
subsidiary of the Group, to an independent third party for a cash 2 EPRRAE - 32 R {E/494,000,0008 7T ¢ (i) B HE
consideration of HK$94 million; (i) its entire interest in Alpha Ease =HHEREB 2 ENBARELBEEBE AR AR 2
Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, to an A% #E - IS K18 A 13,500,000 7T : (i) A1 B L E =
independent third party for a cash consideration of HK$13.5 million; 77 & AR B 25 B B A B) West West Limited 2 38 %
(iii) its entire interest in West West Limited, a wholly-owned 7 3R & (B A45,000,0008 7T (VEBILE=FH
subsidiary of the Group, to an independent third party for a cash & RSB 2 &K B 2 A Four Sheets Limited 2 35 A%
consideration of HK$45 million; (iv) its entire interest in Four Sheets 7 - &R {EA30,000,00087T 0 RV ABILE=F
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, to an independent HEAEBE2ENB AR 139RBEAR A LEKB
third party for a cash consideration of HK$30 million; and (v) its NEIZERE - RERER100ETT

entire equity interest in 139 International Limited and its subsidiaries,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, to an independent third
party for a cash consideration of HK$100.

Note 2016 ZZE—"F
B eE HK$'000 F7# 7T

Net assets disposed of: BEHEFEE :
Investment properties wEMZE 92,000
Available-for-sale equity investments A E R AR E 153,000
Debt component of acquired convertible bonds B IR ES 2 AEED 15,529
Derivative component of acquired convertible bonds = 48 A 32 & (5 %5 2 £7 4 T B &5 4,034
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 13 482
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHETT 1,273
Restricted bank balance ZRHIRITETF 762
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfTFRIE © 1RE Rk E th fEWGRIE 1,141
Other payables and accruals Hib e RIBERETER (4,336)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIARE (1,048)
Net assets disposed of EHEFEE 262,837
Non-controlling interests IR A 8,372
Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve Al SR E B S (2,577)
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve P [0 & H, % Eh 5 (346)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMEARZ A (85,786)
182,500

Satisfied by: AT AR -
Cash HE 182,500
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30. Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued) 30. HEMB AT (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect EELENBAR RSN SEEEE RATE Y
of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: DT :
2016 —=— " F
HK$'000 +7& 7T
Cash consideration BEeRE 182,500
Cash and bank balances disposed of BHEHRe RIRITET (1,273)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect FHRLERBAR R MREeEE
of the disposal of subsidiaries HE A HE 181,227
31. Operating Lease Arrangements 31. R&EAELH
As lessee YEAEFE A
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease $%$E‘<%FWM ERHTEHEE TR - Sy
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging MOBE—ZEZ=F(ZF—X F: —E=F) -
from one to three years (2016: one to three years).
At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease RoT—tE=A=+—0F  AE=EBRETAREL
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as LEAERTHSHEE S AR ERENZBEN
follows: T
2017 =2 —tF 2016 —=— /" F
HK$'000 & 7T HK$'000 F& 7T
Within one year —FE R 12,125 14,905
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEZEFRF(BIEGRMF) 19,003 19,814
31,128 34,719
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32. Commitments 32. &I
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 31 R BB EE 31 Tt As & A EAIESN - RMEER - K
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end SEBNTEARRE
of the reporting period:
2017=F—tF 2016 ZZ— /"5
HK$'000 F & 7t HK$'000 F/ 7T
Contracted, but not provided for: EHESEES 3
Leasehold improvement HEMFERE - 3,181
Furniture, fixtures and equipment R~ KB MER 853 1,182
853 4,363

33. Related Party Transactions

(a)

(b)

(0)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following transaction
with a related party during the year:

33. BEAEIRS

(a)

Note
B =

BAM B RREMEO PR ZRZH
BERAREEAATEBEALZRS

i

2017 =2 —+ & 2016 —ZF— "4
HK$’000 T8 7t HK$'000 T T

KE—REFZHEEA

Interest income from a director

(i)

961 =

Note:

() Interest income was charged on a loan to a director at a rate of 5%
per annum on the principal amount.

The related party transaction above also constituted a
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
The Group considers the directors of the Company to be the
key management personnel, whose compensation has been
disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

Outstanding balances with a related party:
Details of the Group’s loan to the Company’s director are
included in note 18 to the financial statements.

0] MEWATIE—ZEERRER  RASENU
FRMR 5% B -

bR A LR S IME LT AR RIE 14AE M
RELZRBERS °

AEETEZEBAEZHS
AEERRARRESTHYRIZEEAR - F
AL Z BRI T 3RRIGE8 IR EE o

@A L2 REEEH
ERALEER—ZARBREETERZHBEL
WS RARMIFE18 -
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PTEEWMIA
SESMTARNMSHRZETEMT

34. Financial Instruments by Category 34.
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2017 —E 5
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss - Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
BREREATLE
Sl 2 HIFEE EXR AfHE
SREE TR tREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TEx Tz
Available-for-sale equity investments  AJ it I ERAIEKE - - 1,121,372 1,121,372
Equity investments at fair BRESEATENEZ
value through profit or loss AR E 49,500 - - 49,500
Loans receivable BUWER - 180,656 - 180,656
Loan to a director RA—ZEZEER - 31,900 - 31,900
Financial assets included in FABMTE  Ze Rk
prepayments, deposits and Hih a2
other receivables SRMEE - 3,582 - 3,582
Cash and bank balances Be RFTER - 4,045 - 4,045
49,500 220,183 1,121,372 1,391,055
Financial liabilities SHaE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
2 48 85 B A 51l BR
ZeEa s
HK$'000
FE T
Trade payables FERTE 5 8RR 502
Financial liabilities included in other STAHMENRIEREGTERZEREE
payables and accruals 21,796
Notes payable BRI 86,574
108,872
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34. Financial Instruments by Category 34. 7 EESRTI A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EREMIARNKERRZEBRERNT : (&)

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
(continued)

2016 —F—RE
Financial assets DRAE
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss - Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
BRERELTE
JIRZ HEER 57954 A E
SREE [EWRIE SREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET TR THT
Available-for-sale equity investments AN ERAEE - - 655,121 655,121
Equity investments at fair value BRBEREATEIIRZ
through profit or loss RAIZE 173,177 - - 173,177
Financial assets included in FABRNFE  ZER
prepayments, deposits and HiEWHIE s eREE
other receivables - 29,764 - 29,764
Cash and bank balances HERB1TET - 86,467 - 86,467
173,177 116,231 655,121 944,529
Financial liabilities TRAR
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
R K S
JfRz ERIE R
HK$'000
FAT
Trade payables B E SR 3
Financial liabilities included in other FAEMENRERESERA 2 CHEE
payables and accruals 40,906
Shareholder loan EEHEE R 50,000
90,909
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35. Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, loans receivable, trade receivables, trade payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
shareholder loan approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the financial
controller and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial
controller. The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

35. TR TAQAFEER

HRIRE RRITET  BREF  BURE SRS &
NE SRR FFARMNTE  REREMEKKIEAZ
ERMEE SFARMEBNREREFERZERMAE
AEBRRERASNERARIE - WEBERRLE
TARAFEEEREERS

AEERESMEEREERTARFEFERRK
B BERE TNV BEENEREESER -
REmEEH BESMITeRTABEZEZH R
HEMETMERNEZGAZE - AERMBEE
ERNAE ERZ B MEBRRERERNPH R
FEMBRESFAmMNR

CHEERABBENATFEUZIARBER S (M
JEREBRIFE) BN E THAIRZEBALR -
THNTTERBRRTDARGERTFE

134 China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIEE H & EEERA A



Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 =ZE—tF=A=+—H

35. Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 35. €T EAFEEBR (&)

(continued)

The fair value of the notes payable has been calculated by FERT IR A) A E 5 @R T B UK B &
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently FIZ CERKREAS TIEHANREHEAKRBES TS
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining MmatE - HEHREERS °

maturities, which approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of listed available-for-sale equity investments and BRBRIZEAFEARS EH A HEHSKRAKE R
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are based on RIEB 7 AN EETIEREMmMEE -
quoted market prices.

Fair value hierarchy NEEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRINTAEE BT ENRATEAEER

of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: R TEFGENEE -
As at 31 March 2017 R-ZZE—tF=HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AN TIEE fiE2 A PEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ATE R BERAHE EAXTAHE
miFHRE WA BE A B
(BE—E#&) (B=EHR) (B=E#&K) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHExT F#ET THET FHET
Available-for-sale equity Al E R AR E
investments 1,121,372 - - 1,121,372
Equity investments at fair HBRERIEANFE
value through profit or loss  %I|BR Z fx A& & 49,500 - - 49,500
1,170,872 - - 1,170,872
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35. Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 35. €T E AL EEBR (&
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) N EER ()
Assets measured at fair value: R THEFGENEE -
As at 31 March 2016 R-ZE—RE=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERATIEB MEZ A FERE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
VS S BAAER EEATAER
Ti5HE EPNE ¢ 5 AR
(F—E#HR) (F=EHR) (F=E#H) wmEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT T
Available-for-sale equity A E A E
investments 655,121 - - 655,121
Equity investments at fair BRI AT E
value through profit or loss  %I|BR Z I& A& & 173,177 - - 173,177
828,298 - - 828,298
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FA - WEE-EREZ _ERENQ T ETESER
between Level 1 and Level 2 (2016: Nil). (ZZ—FRF:8|)-
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value AEER T —+tF R T —A"F=A=1+—HIE
as at 31 March 2017 and 2016. ERHRAFEFEZERBEE -
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise equity
investments and cash and bank balances. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables, loans receivable, trade payables, notes payable
and shareholder loan. Details of the major financial instruments and
the Group's accounting policies in relation to them are disclosed in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group does not have any significant exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates, and therefore it does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt obligations.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related party. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debtor at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, available-for-sale equity investments and
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

36.

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 —E—+tF=A=+—H

MBRREEEERBE

REFRZIZEMTABERAKRENUNRE S RRTT

BE - HEERMTATEERERAERZEEEERE

T AEEEFEMIRAZEHMEERBE  MEK

BHEHR - BRER  BNEZER  BNRERK

RER - TESRTANASEUZESRT A
R IR BRI TS IR ML 2.4 B2 -

AEBZEMTAMELEZ T Z2RARA/TNXRER - 5

ERk  TBESRKBREBAERKER EZFSER
SEEENERR ERER - WHEMT .
F) 2= [ Bex

REBATH S REE B - I 8B KR RATE -
EERATESRTEASNEBBET -

sl

FERER
AEEERTEREREENFELE=DREEAL
EITRS - BRAKEZBER - A RIREEHET

RHZBEPUHARBEERERFR  TAEE - It
Sh - REBE RSB AERER - MAKE 2=
RERBIT AEKX - ANEBRE WS RS AE 5
EWE SRR Z AR E 2R  BRATAIKESEIE
H R SRERE -

rEEEpeREE(EPRERERRTESF A
HHERARE N R BIERR A FEIIRZBRAR
B2 EERBHZZABRNRAESE - B LR
HERZETEZRHAE -

HRAEEEEZER L RE
2 @ MHAERERR -

BURZE=TTETR
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36. BI K EKREEEEREE (&)
Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk RBESRE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring AREFFNALS U RS ECRE TEAERESEHRY
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its Efg - WETEZRSMT AR BEE (fl0 &K
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables and BRI REWER) 2EHBE KBRS EREZ
loans receivable) and projected cash flows from operations. BHERE ©
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of AREBZEEERERERAEB ZAISHHARE RE
funding and flexibility through the use of the Group'’s available cash ETRARE  RISESBBEMREEE 2 T o
and its listed equity investments.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end AEBEBEBEOITORTRAROT SR E ERHREH
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted KRB RAT -
payments, is as follows:
2017 —E—+tF
On demand
or within 1to5 Over 5
1 year years years Total
BRERR
R—FR —ZHF FFUE Bt
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
FTHET TET THET FHET
Trade payables ERTE 5 8RR 502 - - 502
Financial liabilities included &t A E-th FE {5 ZR 8 K2
in other payables and FtERZERMERE
accruals 21,796 - - 21,796
Notes payable NS 3,583 14,736 99,569 117,888
25,881 14,736 99,569 140,186
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36.

Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 March 2017 =ZE—tF=A=+—H

M¥RREREBZERBEE)
RBEZERE (&)

2016 —E—REF
On demand
or within 1to5 Over 5
1 year years years Total
RERE
R—FR —EhF AEFE #st
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FAT FAT FHET FAT
Trade payables FERTE S8R 3 - - 3
Financial liabilities included &5+ A Efth & < 5008 K2
in other payables and BEtERZ
accruals TRBE 40,906 - - 40,906
Shareholder loan RERE R 50,000 - = 50,000
90,909 - - 90,909
Equity price risk PR B A [ e

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as trading equity investments (note 15)
and available-for-sale investments (note 14) as at 31 March 2017.
The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock
exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% change
in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other variables
held constant and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this
analysis, for the available-for-sale equity investments the impact is
deemed to be on the available-for-sale equity investment revaluation
reserve and no account is given for factors such as impairment which
might impact on the statement of profit or loss.

BAERRRERERNES 2 EEHRESH S RAE
HFAFETHRZER - R=T—+tF=A=+—8
AEEARRADERR ZERIRARE (H5E15) XA
HIHERE (5 14) 2 ERIRARE MEE 2 RAE
BERE AKEZ EMREERBESFRZA LT -
WR R EHARAPTIHRTEGE ©

TRETMRBERS PR RAE  BAREZAFE
5% % B 1 P A H i 58 B0 A 15 AN B I FORR B 28 2 A7)
FERBRIGRE - RANTM S - A SRR
B R BEREARHIHEERAREERFE LY
2 FhUEEERESFUETERERRIEE -
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)

36. I EREERFERBER (&

RAEEE R ()

Carrying amount  Change in the

Change in the

of equity Group's loss Group's
investments before tax equity*
RARE A B RB AT rEE
IREE EE2E RS E >
HK$'000F#7C  HK$'000 F/#7  HK$'000 Fi5 7T
2017 —E—tF
Investments listed in: RTIEEZKE -
Hong Kong — Available-for-sale BB —AHEEE 1,121,372 - 56,069
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BE —H1EER 49,500 2,475 -
@ Excluding accumulated losses * TEIEREE
2016 —E—RF
Investments listed in: RIFEIEZKRE
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BB —HBEESR 173,177 8,659 -

* Excluding accumulated losses

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

* TEREZRER

EREE

AEEEAEE TEBEAREASEERELE
REFHFRENERLE - AT RH B AR R

mABE-

AEEETEEEARE  WREKENRNNEC KA
BB E R SHMELFE o AKE R EHRIRM

TRRABS -

AR IE B AN B ITHTR - DAMERT

SHBEARE - BE_T—+tFER T RF=H
=+—RALEE AEEEEEANBR  BRAE

A T -
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)
Capital management (continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio

Notes to Financial Statements

36. MEMREEE

BATEERAR MY RE

31 March 2017 =ZE—tF=A=+—H

=R BUR (&)

ﬁzlx'_qiﬁ (/nﬁ
AREBEABIEAER R (REBEER AR RHE

calculated as total debt divided by total equity. The debt-to-equity ATH) 2 BEEEHER  RBERAK 2 GRS
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows: EESULE

2017 =8 —tF 2016 —ZF—7R4F
HK$000 F & 7t HK$'000 F7# 7T
Trade payables FERTE SRR 502 3
Other payables and accruals Hih e IE R EGHE A 21,796 40,906
Notes payable JERRE 86,574 =
Shareholder loan IREERK - 50,000
Total debt BIRERE 108,872 90,909
Total equity S Aa%EE 1,315,579 934,456
Debt-to-equity ratio BIEE RS R 8.3% 9.7%

37. Events After the Reporting Period

(a)

(b)

On 3 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Future World Financial Holdings Limited, of
which 5% equity interests were held by the Company, to
acquire a 34% equity interest in Instant Achieve Limited,
which is engaged in the brokerage services business. The
purchase consideration of HK$7,000,000 for the acquisition
was fully paid in April 2017.

On 6 April 2017, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to which the
placing agent has conditionally agreed to procure a total of
not less than six placees to subscribe for a maximum of
1,793,025,796 shares at the placing price of HK$0.155 per
share. On the same date, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to which the
placing agent has conditionally agreed to procure a total of
not less than six placees to subscribe for the convertible bonds
of an aggregate principal amount of HK$342,463,000. Based
on the initial conversion price of HK$0.191 per share, a
maximum number of 1,793,000,000 conversion shares will be
allotted and issued upon the exercise of conversion rights in
full.

7. REHREE

(a)

R-TB—+FNMA=H  ANEFEREHRE
BIERAERAR (ARARFHHF5%HE) T
Y EE AN ERESR AR (REKLRE
EB)Mr s RE - WBEETEZ2BEBERE
7,000,000 B TER=Z—tFMHA 28T -

timﬂ/\a ANA RS RIEEET
R REREBEGREREZRE
’/E’\/\%EKEEA&@E%FSH&EO155/%
&% 1,793,025,796 BE %5 - AR » &
s E B RE R Bl BRER
f%*ﬁ lﬂfmﬁﬁﬁ:.,\ SR AN BERARE
N4 4858 /5342,463,000 78 7T 2 AT IR (E 5 °
BIEBVHFERETR0INB T - REHITE
EHES - 525 1,793,000,000 A% E A% 1) 15 78
Ao %% & B44T ©

el =
m%umuﬁi

ik

L\» o o> ke R
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37. Events After the Reporting Period
(continued)

(b)

142 China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIZHE HNFKEBER AT

(continued)

On 8 May 2017, an aggregate of 1,300,040,000 new shares
were allotted and issued to six placees at the placing price of
HK$0.155 per share, and net proceeds of approximately
HK$198,300,000 were received by the Company accordingly.
The placing of convertible bonds was not completed as at the
date of approval of these financial statements; and

On 28 November 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with Gold Mission
Limited (“Gold Mission”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CMBC
Capital Holdings Limited (formerly known as Skyway Securities
Group Limited), a substantial shareholder of the Company, to
acquire 100% equity interests of Sky Eagle Global Limited
(“Sky Eagle”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Gold Mission, at
an aggregate consideration of HK$227,000,000. Pursuant to
the Agreement, the consideration would be settled in cash of
HK$22,000,000 upon the signing of the agreement and by
way of issuing convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$205,000,000 for the remaining balance upon the
completion of the transaction. Sky Eagle is holding an
investment property located in Hong Kong for rental income
purpose.

On 7 March 2017, the Group and Gold Mission entered into a
supplemental agreement, pursuant to which the Group and
Gold Mission conditionally agreed to amend the settlement
method of the remaining balance of the consideration of
HK$205,000,000 from the issue of the convertible bonds in
the principal amount of HK$205,000,000 by the Group to
Gold Mission to payment in cash of HK$205,000,000 upon
the completion of the transaction.

On 9 May 2017, the above acquisition was completed and the
remaining purchase consideration of HK$205,000,000 was
fully paid by the Group in cash in May 2017.

37. HEMEREEE)

(b)

(&)

M=Z—+%AAN\B » & 1,300,040,000 f%
D BRI & B SRR 0.155 B Ll & &
BITTANBARA  MARARCKEFTERE
F RE#7198,300,0008 7T © R S M B KE
HEB  ATRBREFZEEMATHK &

RZT—A"FE+—A=+/N\H KA&EEHGold
Mission Limited ([ Gold Mission |) (7R A &)= 2%
REBEAERER AR (AIBEXIEESEEHR
RARE) Z2EMBAR) M B E W%
#% 1)+ A Uk B8 Sky Eagle Global Limited ([ Sky
Eagle]) (Gold Mission 2 2 & W E A 7]) 2 25
AR HE - 42X 8 5 227,000,00078 7T ° BRI %
& 0 NER R 2 0 R B % LAZR © 22,000,000 7% 7T
IARE - MBRARTERR SEFERETA
 #H /3 205,000,000 % 7T 2 A] # AR & 5 E AT o
Sky Fagle BE 55 — BN BB Z IR EWELE
WeEN A & WA i ©

A—E—tF=HtH ' AEEEHGold Mission
I AT R - B UL - AN 5 B BiGold Mission
A &4 R Z B 5] K {8 # 3£ 205,000,000 % 7T 2
HEE L BHBAEE R Gold Mission 1T
7K < %8 5 205,000,000 7% 7T 2 A 2 AR (E H 21 A
A TERK 32 5 B LAZR & 205,000,000 7T X A ©

R-ZE—+tFRANB LMWEFEAED =
B+ B8 B X {8 # 3£ 205,000,000 8 TER =
—tFhABRAREBUNBREE2ETT -



38. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2017

38. A FZMBARREK

BATEERAR MY RE

—F—t£=A=+-H

Information about the statement of financial position of the RIFEHK - RAFMFERRE BRI :
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 =F—t#& 2016 = — <&
HK$'000 T & T HK$'000 T/t
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE REtE 3,465 8
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZI&E - -
Deposits Ee 27,947 3,385
Total non-current assets JEMENE EMRE 31,412 3,393
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Due from subsidiaries L I NGIE O 1,267,541 882,563
Prepayments, deposits and TRAFRIE -~ 1Re RE M EWGRIE
other receivables 971 131
Cash and bank balances e RIBITEF 2,537 2,983
Total current assets MEEEAE 1,271,049 885,677
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Other payables and accruals Hub 8 K ERTE A 18,916 33,589
Due to subsidiaries ARl EPNGIE e 22,608 9,497
Shareholder loan ERE R - 50,000
Total current liabilities mEN B ELRTE 41,524 93,086
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFRE 1,229,525 792,591
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEREBERABEE
LIABILITIES 1,260,937 795,984
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREEE
Notes payable RS 86,574 -
Net assets FEE 1,174,363 795,984
EQUITY s
Share capital N 89,651 85,004
Reserves (note) & (FdsE) 1,084,712 710,980
Total equity G Fn e 1,174,363 795,984
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38. Statement of Financial Position of the 38. XA TR ZEIER R ()
Company (continued)
Note: B
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RNATREBEENT :
Equity
Share Share  component
premium  Contributed Capital option of convertible  Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve bonds losses Total
ARRES
R EER BAES EXRE  BRERE ZRERHH 2 ER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT FHT T FHT THT
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—REWA—H 3,060,703 675,671 556 34,034 47,257 (2,876,678) 941,543
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFERZAFBLR
loss for the year - - - - - (1,212,145) (1,212,145)
Placing of new shares, BEMR - MRS
net of expenses 958,285 - - - - - 958,285
Equity-settled share option IRERLE 2 BRERH - 8
arrangements, net - - - (1,579) - - (1,579)
Transfer of share option R ERERERE
reserve upon forfeiture - - - (32,455) - 32,455 -
Bonus warrants exercised I RRRAEE 24,876 = = = = = 24,876
At 31 March 2016 and RZZE-—~"F=A=+-8BK
1 April 2016 —T-RENA—H 4,043,864 675,671 556 - 47,257 (4,056,368) 710,980
Profit and total comprehensive AEERF R E AR AR
income for the year - - - - - 286,175 286,175
Equity-settled share option IRIELH 2 BRERH: 38
arrangements, net - - - 60,600 - - 60,600
Bonus warrants exercised AR AR AEE 26,957 - - - - - 26,957
At 31 March 2017 R=F—t§=A=+—H 4,070,821 675,671 556 60,600 47,257 (3,770,193) 1,084,712

39.

The profit of HK$286,175,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 included write-
back of due from subsidiaries of the Company of HK$348,772,000.

The loss of HK$1,212,145,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016 included
impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company of
HK$1,204,193,000 and write-back of investments in subsidiaries of the Company
of HK$1,242,000.

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result of the capital
reorganisation referred to in note 27 and represented the excess of the then
combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, the capital reorganisation described in note 27 also resulted in an
aggregate credit balance of approximately HK$631,982,000 (2016:
HK$631,982,000) being transferred to the Company’s contributed surplus.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 23 June 2017.

39.

HE-ZT—tF=RA=1+—HIFE 2%F286,175,000%
TT /B 3E 13 1B FE W A 12 B P BB /A R 3K 348,772,000 78 7T

HEZT—R"F=RA=1+—HILFE 2 1,212,145,0007%
TLE B A BH B A B 3B 1,204,193,000 75 7T R &
EIARARKME AR ZEE 1,242,000 7T ©

REBEZ BEFBHRANE27 Tt 2 BARSE - TyiEpEEE
MBEAREEZEHEEFEBRARAR /MR ETEEMZ
TR 17 2 TE{ELER H 2 B05E

BEAN - B 27 Bl 2 IR A E 48 7138 Bl s $£49631,982,000 78
JL(ZZ—754F : 631,982,000870) 2 EREBEEARF 2B

M mR 2 HE
HHREER T LEXA-+SAEEERIE
BAEMTIE -
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